
 

 
 

  

 

Audit Committee 
 

Tuesday 24 March 2015 at 7.00 pm 
Board Room 3 - 4, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members Substitute Members 
  

Mr Ewart (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 

Councillors: 
 

RS Patel, Krupa Sheth, Stopp and Thomas 
 
Councillors: 
 

Ms Shaw and Warren   
 

  
A Choudry 
Filson 
Khan 
McLeish 
Davidson 
 
 
 
For further information contact: Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1354, joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: democracy.brent.gov.uk 
 
 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare, at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

     

2 Deputations  
 

 

     

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

1 - 10 

     

4 Matters arising  
 

 

     

5 KPMG External Audit Plan  
 

11 - 38 

 This document describes how KPMG will deliver the audit work for 
London Borough of Brent and the Brent Pension Fund. 
 

 

     

6 KPMG Terms of reference for audit committee training  
 

39 - 44 

 This report sets out the objectives and the timetable for Audit Committee 
effective training.  The training aims to assess the committee’s 
effectiveness and look at the characteristics of an effective audit 
committee and ensure all members of the audit committee have a clear 
and shared understanding of their role.  Training will be provided on some 
of the softer skills that will help the members to become more effective in 
their role.  
 

 

     

7 Internal Audit Progress Report  
 

45 - 84 

 This report provides an update on progress against the internal audit plan 
for the period 1st April 2014 to 28th February 2015. The report also 
provides a summary of counter fraud work for 2014/15. 

 



 

 

 
I have attached an appendix to the report. 
 

 Ward affected:  Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief Finance 
Officer 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 6528 conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk  

     

8 Risk Register  
 

85 - 102 

 This report presents the council’s current Corporate Risk Register. 
  
I have attached appendices (2) to the report. 
 

 

 Ward affected:  Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief Finance 
Officer 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 6528 conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk  

     

9 Internal Audit Plan 2015/16  
 

103 - 
112 

 This report sets out the Draft Internal Audit Plan (“the Plan) for 2015/16 
and the basis on which the plan has been formulated. 
 

 

 Ward affected:  Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief Finance 
Officer 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 6528 conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk  

     

10 Recruitment of Independent Chair of the Audit Committee  
 

113 - 
116 

 This report sets out the arrangements for the appointment of the 
independent chair of the audit committee as the term of office for the 
current independent chair comes to an end on 24th June 2015. 
 

 

 Ward affected:  Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief Finance 
Officer 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 6528 conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk  

     

11 Any other urgent business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

     



 

 

12 Date of next meeting  
 

 

 The date of next meeting of the Audit Committee will be confirmed at the 
Council’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 20 May 2015.  
 

 

     
 
 

� Please remember to set your mobile phone to silent during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
 

 



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Wednesday 7 January 2015 at 7.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT: Mr Ewart (Chair), Councillor Khan (Vice-Chair) and Councillors A Choudry, 
Filson, McLeish and Davidson 

 
Also present: Councillors S Choudhary and Pavey 

 
 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
10. Shared internal audit services 
 
Mr David Ewart (Independent Chair) declared that he used to be a director at Ealing 
Council and was in receipt of a pension from the Ealing Pension Fund. He also 
received a salary from Ealing Council on an agency basis as an employee of 
Mortlake Crematorium Board of which he is Treasurer. The Board has used Ealing 
Council’s Internal Audit to carry out audits of the Board’s returns.  
 
Simon Lane declared that he would potentially be directly affected by the proposals 
contained in the report; shared internal audit services. 
 
Steve Lucas (KPMG) declared that he was the audit manager for Ealing and 
Hounslow Councils. 
 
The Committee were content that none of the above declarations prevented the 
individuals speaking in respect of the shared internal audit services report.  
 

2. Deputations  
 
None. 
 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 November 2014 be approved 
as an accurate record of the meeting subject to the following amendment; 
Phil Johnstone, Director at KPMG, asked that the minutes be corrected to reflect 
the comments he made at the last meeting [to the effect that he thought that Brent 
was well served by an experienced Chief Executive, and that the fact that the 
appointment was not permanent did not cause him to have concerns as appointed 
auditor. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

4. Matters arising  
 
National Fraud Initiative 
It was reported that Simon Lane (Head of Internal Audit) had circulated details of 
the composition of the group of authorities against which the Council was being 
compared.  
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI) – Social Care 
Members noted that the Operational Director, Social Care had not circulated the 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI) as agreed at the last meeting and asked that he 
be reminded to do so. 
 

5. Certification of Grants and Returns  
 
The Committee received a report from KPMG (external auditors) which set out the 
certification of work undertaken by KPMG for 2013/14.  This was a requirement by 
the Audit Commission for the external auditors to prepare an annual report on the 
claims and returns it had certified for the Council. Steve Lucas (Audit Manager) 
introduced the report. 
 
In relation to the HB subsidy claim, Steve Lucas identified that HB subsidy was a 
complex area and over 50% of councils have their claim qualified. He continued 
that for the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim, the Authority identified 83 cases referred 
to them by Brent Mental Health Service totaling £1,177,334.  This had been 
misclassified within the claim but was later corrected and resulted in an increase of 
subsidy due to the Authority of £332,439.   
 
Councillor Filson asked whether officers should be praised for identifying this 
underclaim. Phil Johnstone (KPMG) pointed out that officers were correcting their 
own errors. 
 
As part of separate testing, KPMG tested the accuracy of 60 claims and identified 5 
errors.. The errors either relating to classification on the claim or the amount paid to 
the claimant. These included incorrect non-dependent deductions made, an 
extended payment incorrectly awarded; and errors in the calculation of self-
employed income.  The Authority tested a further 80 cases and identified errors in 
33 cases. This primarily concerned self employed cases where either an incorrect 
amount was used for expenses or there was no evidence to support the basis for 
the expense amount. This resulted in four overpayments, nine errors which did not 
change the value of the individual claims and 20 which would have resulted in 
underpayments based on the information on file.  As a result of KPMG’s testing the 
Housing Benefit Subsidy claim was qualified with the total extrapolated error, based 
on the errors found approximately £100,000.  
 
Members heard that the Authority had addressed two of the three 
recommendations made in 2012/13 relating to the housing benefit grant claim. The 
third recommendation on removing errors in rent and income figures used had not 
been addressed as there was a significant increase in the number of cases which 
could either not be evidenced or disagreed to the evidence available this year. The 
main area was self-employed income, including eligible deductions.  
 

Page 2



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

Andy Monkley (Subsidy and Policy Manager) was in attendance to answer queries 
on housing benefit subsidy. Andy Donald, Strategic Director R&G, was also 
present.  Andy Monkley explained that this was the first time that the Council had 
identified that level of errors with self employed income assessment. Mr Monkley 
explained that the majority of errors related to a lack of audit trail for the 
calculations.  He  added that the department would carry out a review of procedures 
by the end of January 2015.  . The review would involve a standard template for self 
employed cases; standard note entries as part of the documentation clarifying 
income and expenses; and training for senior officers.  Andy Monkley undertook to 
submit the results of the review to the Committee within 6 months. This approach 
was endorsed by Phil Johnstone (Director, KPMG) and the Chair who also added 
that it was unusual for any Council to receive a priority 1 recommendation. 
 
In the ensuing discussion, members acknowledged that although self employed 
income assessment is a complex area, the level and quantity of identified error was 
unacceptably high. Members also thanked officers for continuing to review the claim 
after the submission date, which resulted in identifying the correction. 
 
Members queried whether KPMG felt these errors were human error or procedural. 
Phil Johnstone indicated that he felt there must be a systemic weakness due to the 
large number.  Councillor Davidson requested that the Chief Finance Officer 
undertake a review of the whole process of assessing claims. Members raised their 
concerns about the very high number of errors with both Cllrs Davidson and Aslam 
Choudry requesting their concerns be noted.  
 
Conrad Hall (Chief Finance Officer) clarified that although errors had been identified 
the more significant issue was absence of documentation.  He highlighted this issue 
as a recurring theme for the committee to focus on, as without evidence of why 
decisions were made the council would be unable to respond effectively to, for 
example, complaints.  He added that as the problem was confined to a particular 
area of self employed cases, he was not minded to initiate a wider review at this 
point in time.  He advised members to obtain an action plan from the officers 
concerned, against which they should review progress in approximately six months' 
time to give reassurance to members. 
 
Councillor Filson raised the issue of recommendations made in the previous audit in 
relation to not implementing the recommendations.  
 
Mr Monkley explained that the errors identified this year were different and no 
errors had been found in relation to rent errors. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i) that the Annual Audit Letter be noted; 
 
(ii) that the Subsidy and Policy Manager circulate an action plan to the 

Committee before the end of the month; 
 
(ii) that the progress against  the action plan and the review of self employed 

income assessment in relation to housing benefit claims be reported to the 
Committee within 6 months. 

 

Page 3



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

6. External audit progress report and technical update  
 
Members considered a report by KPMG which provided an overview on progress in 
delivering KPMG’s responsibilities as the external auditors. The report also flagged 
up publications/articles that may be of interest to the Committee and also 
highlighted technical issues which were currently having an impact in local 
government. 
 
Phil Johnstone (Director, KPMG) updated members on audit work completed for the 
2013/14 financial year since the last Audit Committee meeting which covered 
certification of the Council’s Housing Benefit subsidy claim, issuing of Grant claim 
and return and a report on Teachers’ Pension return. Members heard that testing 
on contribution rates for other teachers in the sample did not identify any other 
errors. He continued that as part of KMPG’s detailed planning work in the next 
quarter, the risk assessment would be updated to determine the audit plans, 
highlighting the key risks for the Authority and the Pension Fund and that detailed 
annual plan would be presented to the Committee at its meeting in March 2015. 
Members heard that there were no audit concerns that needed to be raised in 
relation to the audit of the accounts or the VFM conclusion from the external 
auditor’s knowledge to date. He continued that the proposed audit fee for 2014/15 
remained at £263,520 for the Authority’s audit and £21,000 for the Pension Fund 
with further substantial reductions of 20%-25% anticipated for 2015/16. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the external audit progress report and the technical update be noted. 
 

7. Treasury management strategy 2015/16  
 
The report presented the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 for 
consideration by the Committee. The final version of the Strategy, incorporating the 
views of the Committee, would be included in the budget report to be approved by 
the Council on 2 March 2015. 
 
Mick Bowden (Operational Director of Finance) introduced the report.  He stated 
that the purpose of the Treasury Management Strategy (TMSS) was to set out the 
TMSS for 2015/16 and the Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16 and central to 
both strategies was the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk.  He 
drew members attention to table 1 of the report that showed that as at 30 
November, 2014 the Authority’s had £432m of long and short-term debt and £142m 
of investments and the list of institutions which met the Council’s credit worthiness 
criteria. 
 
Conrad Hall (Chief Finance Officer) informed members that the Council’s external 
interest budget for 2014/15 was £17.0m, with budgeted investment income of 
£0.6m with the minimum revenue provision (set aside for the repayment of debt) of 
£11.3m. He added that the setting of the capital financing budget for 2015/16 would 
form part of the overall budget decision to be taken by the Council on 2 March 
2015. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

RESOLVED: 
 
that the draft Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 be noted. 
 

8. Internal audit progress report 2014/15  
 
Members considered a report which provided an update on progress against the 
internal audit plan for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 December 2014 together with a 
summary of counter fraud work for 2014/15.  As resolved at a previous meeting, 
members agreed to receive clarifications from senior officers from departments 
which received limited assurance internal audit reports.  The Committee welcomed 
Andy Donald (Strategic Director of Regeneration and Growth) and Richard Barrett 
(Operational Director of Property and Projects).   
 
Simon Lane (Head of Internal Audit) reported on the main areas of weaknesses and 
key issues in respect of income from the Melting Pot, Civic Centre underground car 
park and Library Café.  He explained that the performance of Europa (the 
contractor) in respect of the reported gross profit margins were not being monitored 
or benchmarked against any industry average/target margins and that 
discrepancies were found in the reported financial figures provided by the 
contractor.  He continued that there was a lack of evidence to support the reported 
income and expenditure information being provided by Europa and an absence of 
an action plan to address the cumulative net loss with no basis provided by the 
contractor for the £20,000 profit projections for 2015/16.  Further, that Europa were 
not maintaining separate accounts for hospitality and the café, which carried 
different profit share arrangements, therefore an accurate assessment of the 
council’s entitlement could not be made. 
 
Andy Donald acknowledged the weaknesses identified in the audit and stated that 
he had engaged with Europa in a wider review prior to the commencement of the 
audit which had helped to inform the client side in particular, the catering side and 
the car park.  Richard Barrett added that as a result of the engagement, Europa had 
agreed to a separation of financial figures to enable transparency and a potential 
variation to the contract which previously allowed Europa to recover their costs 
quicker than expected.  In respect of gross profit margin Richard Barrett informed 
members that monthly monitoring had been agreed as was industry wide 
benchmarking.  He added that as part of the monthly review process, 
discrepancies, when found, were being flagged up by the Performance Manager. 
 
In the discussion that followed, members queried why the department did not 
identify the anomalies through robust monitoring of the contract with Europa.  
Members also questioned as to whether there was a robust business plan and 
whether any other options were considered before the contract with Europa was 
entered into including an understanding of the Europa’s operations.  Concerns were 
also expressed about the discrepancies referred to in the audit and officers were 
asked to quantify the level.   
 
Members also expressed concern that the amortisation of plant and other capital 
costs had been determined by the contractor without reference to officers, and that 
officers had not sought to challenge this.  The Operational Director acknowledged 
the concern and agreed that this should have happened, but pointed out that the 
effect of this would be to increase the profit share to the council in future years. The 

Page 5



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

operational director undertook to check the terms of the contract in relation to the 
charging of capital expenditure. Expenditure relating to the fit out of the library café 
had not been anticipated when the contract was drafted. 
 
Miyako Graham (Audit Manager, Mazars) confirmed that the level of discrepancies 
in relation to the monthly monitoring sheets was of low value.  Richard Barrett 
informed members that alternative models where being examined. He reiterated 
that the contract with Europa would be re-examined and that benchmarking of their 
costs had been sought.  Andy Donald echoed the responses adding that the 
contract would be fundamentally restructured to ensure that the concerns 
expressed in the audit were addressed. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer added that it was not necessarily wrong to seek to let 
commercially sophisticated contracts such as with Europa, incorporating as it does 
profit share and other mechanisms.  However, without the officers in place with the 
commercial expertise to manage these, such contracts were inherently high risk, 
and in this case where contract monitoring was as weak as it was the results would 
always be highly unsatisfactory. 
 
The Committee also received senior officers from Children and Young People: Gail 
Tolley (Strategic Director), Graham Genoni (Operational Director) and Neil 
McDonald (Head of Localities and CWD) to the meeting.  
 
Simon Lane summarised the key findings of the audit of the No Recourse to Public 
Funds audit.  The audit related to the provision of support for those children and 
families with children who are unable to access the normal range of welfare benefits 
due to their immigration status.  The main issues from the audit related to a lack of 
a formally defined operational policy and procedure document, a lack of audit trail 
including evidence of approval for payments and issues concerning the recharge 
from housing options. and tracking of the client’s status and a number of errors in 
the sample testing.  Members heard that the budget for NRPF in 2013/14 of 
£520,000 was underspend by £138k and for 2014/15, although the service budget 
had remained at £520k the projected year-end forecast based on current families 
being provided with a NRPF service was £673k - a projected overspend of 
£153,000.  He then drew members’ attention to the recommendations made to the 
department to address the key findings as set out in the report. 
 
Gail Tolley informed the Committee that the projected overspend was in response 
to an exponential increase in demand which was not peculiar to Brent.  She 
continued that a new team was in place and addressing the findings of the internal 
audit with robust policies and procedures already in place and which would be 
documented and consolidated into local NRPF procedures.    She added that the 
department was in discussion with housing services on how to take these forward 
as well as to manage the budget effectively.  Graham Genoni added that the 
current procedures in place were fairly robust to ensure that the concerns identified 
in the audit were addressed.  In order to prevent overpayments occurring again, 
NRPF cases were being held in the Care Planning and Locality teams were now 
being jointly allocated to the NRPF team in order to ensure payments were 
monitored and status tracked accordingly.  The NRPF team undertook regular 
payment checks to ensure that all payments approved to be made have actually 
been made in a complete and timely manner.  Any discrepancies were being 
followed up with the Finance team and a copy of the checks undertaken should be 

Page 6



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

retained by the NRPF team.  Neil McDonald outlined some of the measures put in 
place to address the audit findings including bi-monthly reviews and added that in 
order to bring costs down, accommodation was being made available in the West 
Midlands areas.  He continued that the payment to the ‘overpaid’ mother was 
terminated with immediate effect and that the mother was now being pursued for 
repayment by the Audit and Investigation team. 
 
Gail Tolley advised members that the actual level of spend in Brent, compared with 
other similar authorities, was relatively low due to the efforts made by the team to 
contain costs. 
 
Members enquired of the Chief Finance Officer about the budgetary pressures.  
Conrad Hall replied that a key issue was the level of control, and that the audit had 
shown that this was limited, with sample checks indicating a high level of cases 
where payments had been made without appropriate documentation. 
 
Simon Lane then provided a routine update on progress against the internal audit 
plan for the period 1 April to 31 December 2014.  Members heard that 677 days 
had been delivered of a total of 1,200 representing 56%.  There were 80 projects 
on the current plan (excluding follow up and advisory work). 41 of the projects had 
been completed to draft or final stage and that 32 those had an audit opinion 
associated with them; 24 substantial, 7 limited and 1 full assurance rating. The 
other projects were grant certifications which did not have an assurance rating 
attached.  He reported that in relation to the Audit Plan for 2015/16, he had 
commenced preliminary meetings with a number of strategic directors which would 
be concluded by mid January. As the proposed audit plan would be submitted to 
committee in March, he requested members to provide him with any areas of 
concern for consideration for inclusion in the plan prior to 31 January 2015. 
 
In respect of internal fraud Simon Lane reported that since the last meeting, four 
cases had been closed in which fraud was identified. These resulted in: one 
dismissal at disciplinary for claiming benefit when not entitled whilst working (for a 
school); two resignations prior to hearings for misuse of council property and one 
warning for non-adherence to policy.  He continued that on housing tenancy fraud 
36 social housing tenancies were identified and 3 applications were cancelled for 
housing and 2 families had their property size reduced following investigations.  
These property size reductions related to applications for housing where applicants 
overstate their true need.  Members also heard that since the previous meeting, a 
further five cases of fraud had been identified. These related to a pension fraud 
valued at £5,200, three SPD frauds with a combined value of £2,000 and a home 
loss grant fraud of £5,300.  Members noted that the Audit and investigations team 
had recently completed an SPD proactive exercise which had generated some 
£220,000 in additional council tax debt. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the progress made in achieving the 2014/15 Internal Audit Plan, the review of 
fraud work and the limited assurance reports as set out in appendix 1 be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

9. Corporate Risk register  
 

The Committee considered a report which presented the council’ s current 
Corporate Risk Register.  Simon Lane (Head of Audit and Investigations) in 
introducing the report informed members that a new Risk Management Group had 
been established, chaired by the Chief Finance Officer. The remit of the group was 
to promote best practice in risk management, review and challenge the content of 
the strategic risk register and to review key issues in respect of the operational risk 
registers.  He drew members attention to the changes to the risk register since the 
Committee last met, attached as an appendix to the report.  
 
Strategic risk, an overarching risk relating to the draft proposed budget for 2015/16 
and 2016/17 and covering all council departments with individual risks on their own 
operational registers, had been added to the strategic register. This was to take 
account of the financial challenge which continued to present significant risks to the 
council in terms of continued delivery of services and managing change.  The Chief 
Finance Officer corrected an error on the document: ownership of which should 
have been shown to be his responsibility. 
 
In terms of operational risks, the following were noted; 
Adult Social Care - Risks concerning the failure to engage with key partners leading 
to additional cost pressures and the risk of fraud in direct payments were removed 
from the corporate register due to a residual score of 12 or less.  
Assistant Chief Executive Department and Regeneration and Growth Department – 
a number of new risks as set out in the report were added 
Environment and Neighbourhood – risk relating to failure of public realm contract 
was removed but the risk of service difficulties; reputational harm or failure during 
organisational change was added. 
Children and Young People – there were no updates. 
 
Cllr Davidson highlighted the implications for the Council in a failure to comply with 
its legal obligations and queried why this risk was not given a higher rating due to 
the recent tribunal loss. Simon Lane pointed out that the risk being referred to 
related to consultation and that the employment tribunal risks were picked up within 
the legal and procurement operational register. Cllr Davidson suggested the risk 
score was not high enough. Conrad Hall undertook to review this.  Attention was 
also drawn to the risk of the council’s inability to provide or provide enough school 
capacity through the schools capital programme which would constitute a breach of 
the council’s statutory duty.  The risk of the failure to achieve delivery of customer 
services project was also highlighted. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the Council’s updated Corporate Risk Register be noted. 
 

10. Shared internal audit services  
 
Members considered a report that set out a proposal to share internal audit services 
with the London Boroughs of Ealing and Hounslow which would enable an 
immediate saving on management costs to be achieved.  Conrad Hall (Chief 
Finance Officer) introduced the report.  He emphasised that the need for shared 

Page 8



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

internal audit services was partly in response to the financial pressures facing the 
Council and the need to make savings of an average of 40% in the provision of its 
support services. Initially the proposal would deliver some savings, but over time, 
the proposal would also deliver further financial savings through economies of scale 
and efficiencies and the opportunity to improve the service by facilitating more 
cross-borough working and sharing best practice, thus enhancing the resilience of 
the service. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer outlined the significant importance of the service in 
providing an essential service to the organisation including providing responsive 
service to management whilst maintaining a degree of independence from day to 
day operations.  He continued that a more significant consideration would be the 
resilience of the service as small teams lack the inherent resilience of larger teams.  
Additionally, there was a significant risk that substantial downsizing of the service 
would result in a model which he could no longer be confident of delivering high 
quality outcomes.  In view of the above reasons, an alternative service delivery 
model had been examined, sharing services with Ealing and Hounslow, who 
already operated a shared internal audit service. Conrad Hall further emphasized 
that the scope of internal audit would not change under the proposals and that 
sharing services could, in future deliver efficiencies of scale and enable the council 
to drive out more costs. He further pointed out that although the service would be 
based in Ealing, there would always need to be a presence at Brent in order to 
provide the service. 
 
After declaring his interest, Simon Lane (Head of Internal Audit) outlined the pros 
and cons of the shared service. The main drawback being the loss of control over 
the function. The method of delivery being determined by Head of Internal Audit 
(HIA) Ealing. This may not suit Brent. However, there would be a legal agreement 
underpinning the arrangement which would set out the expected standards and 
delivery and standards would be governed by the document. Further, he pointed 
out that there would be less Head of Audit time at Brent with one HIA spreading 
themselves across three boroughs, although this can be offset by having good 
senior staff in place in each authority. Some of the advantages included the 
immediate cost saving of the Head of Audit salary and the potential to spread 
management and contract costs over a larger team in future. However, some of the 
savings may be offset by increase in costs of travel between sites. There may also 
be some economies of scale in undertaking audits across three boroughs if other 
services were also shared. 
 
In the ensuing discussions, members enquired as to whether this arrangement was 
a new phenomenon in London and if other Councils had entered into an 
arrangement for shared internal audit services.  They also sought assurances that 
the proposed arrangement would protect the interests of the Council, that the head 
of audit would continue to be able to report to the Audit Committee, Chief Executive 
and Chief Finance Officer and that a direct access to the Head of Audit would be 
available.   Cllr Davidson suggested that more shared services of all council 
services should be considered if a satisfactory business case existed. 
 
Phil Johnstone (KPMG) informed members that shared internal audit services was 
a relatively common model across London in view of its benefits including financial 
and cost savings, specialism and economies of scale. In welcoming the proposal 
subject to the views expressed, members asked that the proposal be monitored and 

Page 9



 
Audit Committee - 7 January 2015 

that the Chief Finance Officer report within one year of commencement, evaluating 
the effectiveness of the new arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i)        that the Audit Committee is supportive of the principle of the proposal; 
 
(ii)       that the Audit Committee considered it essential that a full and proper legal 

agreement was entered into to underpin the shared service arrangement to 
protect the Council's interests;  

 
(iii)     that the Audit Committee were reassured by officers that a satisfactory legal 

agreement would be entered into prior to commencement of the proposal, 
ensuring in particular that the arrangements for the head of audit to be able 
to report directly to the Audit Committee, Chief Executive and Chief Finance 
Officer would remain unchanged and that a direct access to the Head of 
Audit would be available; 

(iv)     that the Audit Committee noted that the audit plan for 2015/16 would be 
agreed prior to commencement of the proposal and that the annual 
governance statement and head of audit’s annual opinion for 2014/15 would 
need to be completed; 

(v)      that the Audit Committee agreed to receive a report within one year of 
commencement evaluating the effectiveness of the new arrangements; 

 
(vi)     that the Audit Committee noted that in due course there might be scope to 

consider adding other services into the arrangement, if a satisfactory 
business case existed. 

 
11. Any other urgent business  

 
None. 
 

12. Date of next meeting  
 
It was noted that the next meeting would take place on Tuesday, 24 March 2015 at 
7.00pm. 
 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 10.15 pm 
 
 
 
D Ewart 
Chair 
 

Page 10



External Audit Plan 
2014/15

London Borough of 
Brent and Brent 
Pension Fund

March 2015

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 11



1© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 

in connection with this 

report are:

Phil Johnstone

Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 020 7311 2091

philip.johnstone@kpmg.co.uk

Steve Lucas

Senior Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 020 7311 2184

stephen.lucas@kpmg.co.uk

Paul Henson

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07990 569252

paul.henson@kpmg.co.uk
This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their 

individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This 
summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available 

on the Audit Commission’s website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Philip Johnstone, the appointed engagement lead to 
the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to 

trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your 
complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit 
Commission, 1st Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 

03034448330.

Report Sections Page

! Introduction 2

! Headlines 3

! Our audit approach 4

! Key financial statements audit risks

! Key audit risks – pension fund 

11

13

! VFM audit approach 14

! Audit team, deliverables, timeline and fees 18

Appendices                                                                          Page 

1. Independence and objectivity requirements                 22

2. Quality assurance and technical capacity                    23

3. Assessment of Fraud Risk                                           25

4. Transfer of Audit Commissions functions                     26

P
age 12



2© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section one
Introduction

This document describes 

how we will deliver our audit 

work for London Borough of 

Brent and the Brent Pension 

Fund.

Scope of this report

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2014/15 presented to 
you in April 2014. It describes how we will deliver our financial 
statements audit work for London Borough of Brent (‘the Authority’) 
and London Borough of Brent Pension Fund (‘the Pension Fund’). It 
also sets out our approach to value for money (VFM) work for 2014/15. 

We are required to satisfy ourselves that your accounts comply with 
statutory requirements and that proper practices have been observed 
in compiling them. We use a risk based audit approach. 

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going 
process and the assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under 
review and updated if necessary.

Statutory responsibilities

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit 
Practice.

The Audit Commission will close on 31 March 2015. However, our 
audit responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the 
Code of Audit Practice in respect of the 2014/15 financial year remain 
unchanged.

The Code of Audit Practice summarises our responsibilities into two 
objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

! financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): 
providing an opinion on your accounts; and

! use of resources: concluding on the arrangements in place for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion).

The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 
Audited Bodies sets out the respective responsibilities of the auditor 
and the Authority. 

The Audit Commission will cease to exist on 31 March 2015. Details of 
the new arrangements are set out in Appendix 4. The Authority can 
expect further communication from the Audit Commission and its 
successor bodies as the new arrangements are established. This plan 
restricts itself to reference to the existing arrangements. 

Structure of this report

This report is structured as follows:

! Section 2 includes our headline messages, including any key risks 
identified this year for the financial statements audit and Value for 
Money arrangements Conclusion.

! Section 3 describes the approach we take for the audit of the 
financial statements.

! Section 4 provides further detail on the financial statements audit 
risks.

! Section 5 provides further detail on the audit risks for the pension 
fund.

! Section 6 explains our approach to VFM arrangements work.

! Section 7 provides information on the audit team, our proposed 
deliverables, the timescales and fees for our work.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members 
for their continuing help and co-operation throughout our audit work.

P
age 13



3© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section two
Headlines

This table summarises the headline messages. The remainder of this report provides further details on each area.Audit approach Our overall audit approach remains similar to last year with no fundamental changes . Our work is carried out in 
four stages and the timings for these, and specifically our on site work, have been agreed with the Chief Finance 
Officer.

Our audit strategy and plan remain flexible as risks and issues change throughout the year. We will review the 
initial assessments presented in this document throughout the year and should any new risks emerge we will 
evaluate these and respond accordingly.

Key financial statements 
audit risks

We have completed our initial risk assessment for the financial statements audit. Along with the two risks required 
by international auditing standards, we have identified two specific risks relating to accounting for school assets 
used by the Authority’s maintained Schools and the Authority’s new general ledger. 

Key financial statements 
audit risks for the 
Pension Fund

Our initial risk assessment for the Pension Fund’s financial statements audit has identified one significant risk this 
year.  This relates to changes made to the Local Government Pension Scheme from 1 April 2014 and how the 
Authority calculates pension entitlement.

VFM audit approach We have completed our initial risk assessment for the VFM conclusion and have not identified any specific risks at 
this stage.

Audit team, deliverables, 
timeline and fees

We have refreshed our audit team this year with Paul Henson replacing Jonathan Ware as the Assistant Manager. 

Our main year end audit is currently planned to commence in early July 2015. Upon conclusion of our work we will 
again present our findings to you in our Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260 Report).

The planned fee for the 2014/15 audit is £266,120. This has increased by £2,600 from the position set out in our 
Audit Fee Letter 2014-15 due to the Audit Commission increasing the fee scale to take account of the additional 
work required on National Non Domestic Rates.

P
age 14



4© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Key: Authority and Pension Fund Authority only

Section three
Our audit approach

We have summarised the four key stages of our financial statements audit process for you below.  We undertake our work on 

your financial statements in 

four key stages during 2014:

! Planning

(January to February).

! Control Evaluation 

(March to April).

! Substantive Procedures 

(July to August).

! Completion (September).

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2

3

4

1 Planning

Control 
evaluation

Substantive 
procedures

Completion

! Update our business understanding and risk assessment. 

! Assess the organisational control environment. 

! Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit approach.

! Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.

! Evaluate and test selected controls over key financial systems.

! Review the internal audit function. 

! Review the accounts production process. 

! Review progress on critical accounting matters

! Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.

! Conclude on critical accounting matters. 

! Identify audit adjustments. 

! Review the Annual Governance Statement. 

! Declare our independence and objectivity.

! Obtain management representations. 

! Report matters of governance interest.

! Form our audit opinion. 

P
age 15



5© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – planning (continued) 

During January and 

February 2015 we completed 

our planning work.

We assess the key risks 

affecting the Authority’s 

financial statements and 

discuss these with officers.

We assess if there are any 

weaknesses in respect of 

central processes that would 

impact on our audit. 

We will issue our Accounts 

audit protocol following 

completion of our planning 

work.

Our planning work took place in January and February 2015. This 
involved the following aspects: 

Business understanding and risk assessment

We update our understanding of the Authority’s operations and identify 
any areas that will require particular attention during our audit of the 
Authority’s financial statements. 

We identify the key risks including risk of fraud affecting the Authority’s 
financial statements. These are based on our knowledge of the 
Authority, our sector experience and our ongoing dialogue with 
Authority staff. Any risks identified to date through our risk assessment 
process are set out in this document. Our audit strategy and plan will, 
however, remain flexible as the risks and issues change throughout the 
year. It is the Authority’s responsibility to adequately address these 
issues. We encourage the Authority to raise any technical issues with 
us as early as possible so that we can agree the accounting treatment 
in advance of the audit visit. 

We meet with the finance team on a regular basis to consider issues 
and how they are addressed during the financial year end closedown 
and accounts preparation.

Organisational control environment

Controls operated at an organisational level often have an impact on 
controls at an operational level and if there were weaknesses this 
would impact on our audit. 

In particular risk management, internal control and ethics and conduct 
have implications for our financial statements audit. The scope of the 
relevant work of your internal auditors also informs our risk 
assessment. 

Audit strategy and approach to materiality

Our audit is performed in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland). The Engagement Lead sets the 
overall direction of the audit and decides the nature and extent of audit 
activities. We design audit procedures in response to the risk that the 
financial statements are materially misstated. The materiality level is a 
matter of professional judgement and is set by the Engagement Lead.

In accordance with ISA 320 (UK&I) ‘Audit materiality’, we plan and 
perform our audit to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and 
fair view. Information is considered material if its omission or 
misstatement could influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements.

Further details on assessment of materiality is set out on page 6 of this 
document.

P
la

n
n

in
g

! Update our business understanding and risk 
assessment including fraud risk.

! Assess the organisational control environment. 

! Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit 
approach.

! Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.

P
age 16



6© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach –planning (continued) 

When we determine our 

audit strategy we set a 

monetary materiality level 

for planning purposes.

For 2014/15 we have set this 

at £20 million for both the 

Authority and Group 

accounts and at £10 million 

for the Pension Fund 

accounts.

We will report all audit 

differences over £1 million 

for the Authority and Group 

and £500,000 for the Pension 

Fund to the Audit 

Committee. 

Materiality

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional 
judgment and includes consideration of three aspects: materiality by 
value, nature and context.

! Material errors by value are those which are simply of significant 
numerical size to distort the reader’s perception of the financial 
statements. Our assessment of the threshold for this depends upon 
the size of key figures in the financial statements, as well as other 
factors such as the level of public interest in the financial 
statements.

! Errors which are material by nature may not be large in value, but 
may concern accounting disclosures of key importance and 
sensitivity, for example the salaries of senior staff.

! Errors that are material by context are those that would alter key 
figures in the financial statements from one result to another – for 
example, errors that change successful performance against a 
target to failure.

Materiality for planning purposes has been set at £20 million for the 
Authority’s standalone accounts and group accounts, which in both 
cases, equates to just under 2 percent of gross expenditure. For the 
Pension Fund, we base materiality on total assets and the 
corresponding figure is £10 million which equates to just below 2 
percent of total assets. We design our procedures to detect errors in 
specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

Reporting to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements 
which are material to our opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit Committee any 
misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified 
by our audit work.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with 
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or 
misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those 
charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as 
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or 
in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative 
criteria.

ISA 450 (UK&I), ‘Evaluation of misstatements identified during the 
audit’, requires us to request that uncorrected misstatements are 
corrected.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference 
could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £1 
million.  For the Pension Fund this will be £500,000.

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during 
the course of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections 
should be communicated to the Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling 
its governance responsibilities.

2014/15

£1,170m

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000
Materiality based on prior year 

gross expenditure plus levies and 
financing for Authority and Group

£20m

P
age 17



7© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – planning (continued) 

We will report on any 

significant matters arising 

from the work of the auditors 

of Brent Housing 

partnership Limited which 

we seek to rely on to support 

our audit of the Authority’s 

group accounts.

We will issue our Accounts 

audit protocol following 

completion of our planning 

work.

Group audit 

In addition to the Authority we deem Brent Housing Partnership Limited 
to be significant in the context of the group audit.

To support our audit work on the Authority’s group accounts, we seek 
to place reliance on the work of PWC who are the auditors to this 
subsidiary. We will liaise with them in order to confirm that their 
programme of work is adequate for our purposes and they satisfy 
professional requirements.

We will report the following matters in our ISA 260 Report:

! any deficiencies in the system of internal controls or instances of 
fraud which the subsidiary auditors identify;

! any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the our 
access to information may have been restricted; and

! any instances where our evaluation of the work the subsidiary 
auditors gives rise to concern about the quality of that auditor’s 
work.

Accounts audit protocol

At the end of our planning work we will issue our Accounts Audit 
Protocol. Separate documents will be issued for the Authority and the 
Pension Fund .These important documents sets out our audit approach 
and timetable. It also summarises the working papers and other 
evidence we require the Authority to provide during our interim and 
final accounts visits. 

P
age 18



8© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – control evaluation

During March 2015 we will 

complete our interim audit 

work.

We assess if controls over 

key financial systems were 

effective during 2014/15.

We work with your finance 

team and the pensions team 

to enhance the efficiency of 

the accounts audit. 

We will report any significant 

findings arising from our 

work to the Audit 

Committee.

Our on site interim visit will be completed during March 2015. During 
this time we will complete work in the following areas: 

Controls over key financial systems

We update our understanding of the Authority’s key financial processes 
where our risk assessment has identified that these are relevant to our 
final accounts audit and where we have determined that this is the 
most efficient audit approach to take. We confirm our understanding by 
completing walkthroughs for these systems. We then test selected 
controls that address key risks within these systems. The strength of 
the control framework informs the substantive testing we complete 
during our final accounts visit. 

Review of internal audit

ISA (UK & Ireland) 610 (revised June 2013) ‘Using the work of internal 
auditors’ now prohibits the use of internal audit to provide direct 
assistance to external auditors and applies to all audits from 2014/15 
onwards.  As a result we are no longer able to rely on the work of 
internal audit to reduce our own audit testing.  We have adapted our 
approach to ensure we comply with the new requirements.  This 
means that we will continue to liaise with internal audit and review the 
findings from their programme of work for 2014/15.  We will also 
consider any significant control deficiencies identified by internal audit 
and ensure that we take this into account where relevant to determine 
the nature of our audit work to ensure the risk is appropriately 
addressed.      

Critical accounting matters

We will discuss the work completed to address the specific risks we 
identified at the planning stage. Wherever possible, we seek to review 
relevant workings and evidence and agree the accounting treatment as 
part of our interim work. 

If there are any significant findings arising from our interim work we will 
present these to the Audit Committee in June 2015.

Accounts production process 

We raised two recommendations in our ISA 260 Report 2013/14 
relating to the accounts production process. These related to:

! The valuation of additions to Council dwellings; and

! Componentisation of the Civic Centre in the fixed asset register.

We will assess the Authority’s progress in addressing our 
recommendations and in preparing for the closedown and accounts 
preparation. 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

! Evaluate and test controls over key financial systems 
identified as part of our risk assessment.

! Review the work undertaken by the internal audit 
function on controls relevant to our risk assessment.

! Review the accounts production process. 

! Review progress on critical accounting matters. 

P
age 19



9© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – substantive procedures

During July and August 2015 

we will be on site for our 

substantive work. We will 

conduct our work on the 

Pension Fund at the same 

time.

We complete detailed testing 

of accounts and disclosures 

and conclude on critical 

accounting matters, such as 

specific risk areas. We then 

agree any audit adjustments 

required to the financial 

statements.

We also review the Annual 

Governance Statement for 

consistency with our 

understanding.

We will present our ISA 260 

Report for both the Authority 

and Pension Fund audits to 

the Audit Committee in

September 2015.

Our final accounts visit on site has been provisionally scheduled for 
July and August 2015 for the Authority and Pension Fund. During this 
time, we will complete the following work: 

Substantive audit procedures

We complete detailed testing on significant balances and disclosures. 
The extent of our work is determined by the Engagement Lead based 
on various factors such as our overall assessment of the Authority’s 
control environment, the effectiveness of controls over individual 
systems and the management of specific risk factors. 

Critical accounting matters 

We conclude our testing of key risk areas identified at the planning 
stage and any additional issues that may have emerged since. 

We will discuss our early findings of the Authority’s approach to 
address the key risk areas with the Chief Finance Officer prior to 
reporting to the Audit Committee.

Audit adjustments 

During our on site work, we will meet with the Financial Control 
Finance Manager on a weekly basis to discuss progress of the audit, 
any differences found and any other issues emerging. 

At the end of our on site work, we will hold a closure meeting, where 
we will provide a schedule of audit differences and agree a timetable 
for the completion stage and the accounts sign off. 

To comply with auditing standards, we are required to report 
uncorrected audit differences to the Audit Committee. We also report 
any material misstatements which have been corrected and which we 
believe should be communicated to you to help you meet your 
governance responsibilities. 

Annual Governance Statement 

We are also required to satisfy ourselves that your Annual Governance 
Statement complies with the applicable framework and is consistent 
with our understanding of your operations. Our review of the work of 
internal audit and consideration of your risk management and 
governance arrangements are part of this. 

We report the findings of our audit of the financial statements work in 
our ISA 260 Report, which we will issue in September 2015.

Pension Fund Annual Report 

We also issue an opinion on the consistency of the Pension Fund’s 
accounts included in the Pension Fund Annual Report with those 
included in the Statement of Accounts  We intend to issue this opinion 
at the same time as our opinion on the accounts.

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s

! Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.

! Conclude on critical accounting matters. 

! Identify and assess any audit adjustments. 

! Review the Annual Governance Statement. 

P
age 20



10© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – other matters 

In addition to the financial 

statements, we also review 

the Authority’s Whole of 

Government Accounts pack.

We may need to undertake 

additional work if we receive 

objections to the accounts 

from local electors. 

We will communicate with 

you throughout the year, 

both formally and informally.

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review your WGA consolidation and undertake the 
work specified under the approach that is agreed with HM Treasury 
and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for production of the pack and 
the specified audit approach for 2014/15 have not yet been confirmed.

Elector challenge

The Audit Commission Act 1998 gives electors certain rights. These 
are:

! the right to inspect the accounts;

! the right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

! the right to object to the accounts. 

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the 
accounts, we may need to undertake additional work to form our 
decision on the elector's objection. The additional work could range 
from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review 
evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where 
we have to interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of 
evidence and seek legal representations on the issues raised. 

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections 
raised by electors is not part of the fee. This work will be charged in 
accordance with the Audit Commission's fee scales.

Reporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating 
the audit findings for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are 
accountable to you in addressing the issues identified as part of the 
audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate with you 
through meetings with the finance team and the Audit Committee. Our 
deliverables are included on page 17. 

Independence and objectivity confirmation

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those 
charged with governance, at least annually, all relationships that may 
bear on the firm’s independence and the objectivity of the audit 
engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place 
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and 
independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those 
persons entrusted with the supervision, control and direction of an 
entity’. In your case this is the Audit Committee.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. 
APB Ethical Standard 1 Integrity, Objectivity and Independence 
requires us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and 
matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services 
and the safeguards put in place, in our professional judgement, may 
reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and the 
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Appendix 1 provides further detail on auditors’ responsibilities 
regarding independence and objectivity.

Confirmation statement

We confirm that as of 2 March 2015 in our professional judgement, 
KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and 
professional requirements and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead 
and audit team is not impaired.

P
age 21



11© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section four
Key financial statements audit risks 

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan 
but consider them as a matter of course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our ISA 260 Report.

! Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Our 
audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out 
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that 
are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

! Fraudulent revenue recognition – We do not consider this to be a significant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and 
opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific work into our audit plan 
in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.

Appendix 3 covers more details on our assessment of fraud risk.

The table below sets out the significant risks we have identified through our planning work that are specific to the audit of the Authority's financial
statements for 2014/15. This includes the Group accounts.

We will revisit our assessment throughout the year and should any additional risks present themselves we will adjust our audit strategy as 
necessary.

In this section we set out our 

assessment of the 

significant risks or other key 

areas of audit focus of the 

Authority's financial 

statements for 2014/15. 

For each key risk/significant 

risk area we have outlined 

the impact on our audit plan.

Key audit  risk Impact on audit

Risk
LAAP Bulletin 101 Accounting for School Assets used by Local Authority 
Maintained Schools issued in December 2014 has been published to assist 
practitioners with the application of the Code in this respect.  The challenges relate 
to school assets owned by third parties such as church bodies and made available 
to school governing bodies under a variety of arrangements.  This includes assets 
used by Voluntary-Aided (VA) and Voluntary-Controlled (VC) Schools as well as 
Foundation Schools.  

Authorities will need to review the agreements under which assets are used by 
VA/VC and Foundation schools and apply the relevant tests of control in the case 
of assets made available free of charge, or risks and rewards of ownership in the 
case of assets made available under leases.  This is a key area of judgement and 
there is a risk that Authorities could omit school assets from, or include school 
assets in, their balance sheet. 
Continued on page 12.

Audit areas affected

! Property Plant 
and equipment  

! CIES (Income 
/Expenditure)

Accounting for 
Local Authority 

Maintained 
Schools

P
age 22



12© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section four
Key financial statements audit risks 

.In this section we set out our 

assessment of the 

significant risks or other key 

areas of audit focus of the 

Authority's financial 

statements for 2014/15. 

For each key risk/significant 

risk area we have outlined 

the impact on our audit plan.

Key audit risk Impact on audit

Continued from page 11.

Our proposed audit work
As part of our audit, we will hold initial conversations to ensure the Authority is 
aware of the latest guidance and review the judgements it has made to comply 
with the guidance. This will include :

- Determining whether the Authority has identified all relevant maintained 
schools within its area and undertaken a review of the agreements 
underpinning the use of school assets by VA, VC and Foundation schools;

- Considering the Authority’s application of the relevant accounting standards to 
account for these schools and challenging its judgements where necessary; 
and

- Determining whether the basis of valuation of assets which are brought on 
balance sheet at 1 April 2013 is appropriate and the valuations are undertaken 
by qualified valuers (if applicable).

Risk
The Authority introduced a new finance system in August 2014. 

Our proposed audit work
As part of our audit, we will review the controls the Authority put in place to ensure 
that balances were transferred accurately to the new system. We will also review 
the findings of the internal audit review of the implementation of the new system.

We will test check values were accurately transferred and that key control 
accounts have been reconciled. 

Audit areas affected

! Property Plant 
and equipment  

! CIES (Income 
/Expenditure)

Audit areas affected

! All areas

Accounting for 
Local Authority 

Maintained 
Schools

New 
finance 
system

P
age 23



13© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section five
Key financial statements audit risks – the Pension Fund

As for the Authority's financial statements, professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all Pension Funds. To recap, 
these are:

! Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Our 
audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out 
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that 
are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

! Fraudulent revenue recognition – We do not consider this to be a significant risk for pension funds as there are limited incentives and 
opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific work into our audit plan 
in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.

The table below sets out the significant risks we have identified through our planning work that are specific to the audit of the Pension Fund’s 
financial statements for 2014/15.

We will revisit our assessment throughout the year and should any additional risks present themselves we will adjust our audit strategy as 
necessary.

In this section we set out our 

assessment of the 

significant risks to the audit 

of the Pension Fund’s 

financial statements for 

2014/15. 

For each key risk area we 

have outlined the impact on 

our audit plan. 

Key audit risks Impact on audit

Risk
From 1 April 2014, all members of the LGPS have automatically joined the new 
career average defined benefit scheme. The new scheme provides more flexibility 
on when members can take their pension and also how much they pay in. There is 
a risk that pension administration systems have not been set up to correctly reflect 
the changes resulting from LGPS 2014 and will therefore not accurately calculate 
the pension benefits due to members. While any errors in the system are unlikely 
to result in material misstatements in 14/15, the possible cumulative effect in 
future years means that specific audit work is needed on ensuring that the 
changes required to the system have been accurately reflected.

Our audit work 

We will review the controls and processes that the Pension Fund have put in place 
to accurately capture the data required by LGPS 2014. Our work will also focus on 
testing that the system has been set up to accurately calculate future benefit 
entitlement.

Audit areas affected

! Contributions

! Benefits

LGPS 
reform

P
age 24



14© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
VFM audit approach

Background to approach to VFM work

In meeting their statutory responsibilities relating to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness, the Commission’s Code of Audit Practice
requires auditors to:

! plan their work based on consideration of the significant risks of 
giving a wrong conclusion (audit risk); and

! carry out only as much work as is appropriate to enable them to 
give a safe VFM conclusion.

To provide stability for auditors and audited bodies, the Audit 
Commission has kept the VFM audit methodology unchanged from 
last year. There are only relatively minor amendments to reflect the 
key issues facing the local government sector.

The approach is structured under two themes, as summarised below.

Our approach to VFM work 

follows guidance provided 

by the Audit Commission.

Specified criteria for VFM 
conclusion

Focus of the criteria Sub-sections

The organisation has proper 
arrangements in place for securing 
financial resilience.

The organisation has robust systems and processes to:

! manage effectively financial risks and opportunities; and 

! secure a stable financial position that enables it to 
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

! Financial governance

! Financial planning

! Financial control

The organisation has proper 
arrangements for challenging how it 
secures economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.

The organisation is prioritising its resources within tighter 
budgets, for example by:

! achieving cost reductions; and

! improving efficiency and productivity.

! Prioritising resources

! Improving efficiency and 
productivity

P
age 25



15© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six 
VFM audit approach (continued)

Overview of the VFM audit approach

The key elements of the VFM audit approach are summarised below.

Each of these stages are summarised further below.

We will follow a risk based 

approach to target audit 

effort on the areas of 

greatest audit risk. 
VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial 
statements and 
other audit work

Assessment of 
residual audit 

risk

Identification of 
specific VFM 
audit work (if 

any)

Conclude on 
arrangements 

to secure 
VFM

No further work required

Assessment of work by 
other review agencies

Specific local risk based 
work

V
F

M
 conclusion

VFM audit stage Audit approach

VFM audit risk 
assessment

We consider the relevance and significance of the potential business risks faced by all local authorities, and other 
risks that apply specifically to the Authority. These are the significant operational and financial risks in achieving 
statutory functions and objectives, which are relevant to auditors’ responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

In doing so we consider:

! the Authority’s own assessment of the risks it faces, and its arrangements to manage and address its risks;

! information from the Audit Commission’s VFM profile tool ;

! evidence gained from previous audit work, including the response to that work; and

! the work of other inspectorates and review agencies.

P
age 26



16© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Our VFM audit will draw 

heavily on other audit work 

which is relevant to our VFM 

responsibilities and the 

results of last year’s VFM 

audit.

We will then form an 

assessment of residual audit 

risk to identify if there are 

any areas where more 

detailed VFM audit work is 

required.

Section six
VFM audit approach (continued)

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Linkages with 
financial statements 
and other audit 
work

There is a degree of overlap between the work we do as part of the VFM audit and our financial statements audit. 
For example, our financial statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the Authority’s organisational 
control environment, including the Authority’s financial management and governance arrangements, many aspects 
of which are relevant to our VFM audit responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid duplication of audit effort by integrating our financial statements and VFM work, 
and this will continue. We will therefore draw upon relevant aspects of our financial statements audit work to inform 
the VFM audit. 

Assessment of 
residual audit risk

It is possible that further audit work may be necessary in some areas to ensure sufficient coverage of the two VFM 
criteria. 

Such work may involve interviews with relevant officers and /or the review of documents such as policies, plans and 
minutes. We may also refer to any self assessment the Authority may prepare against the characteristics.

To inform any further work we must draw together an assessment of residual audit risk, taking account of the work 
undertaken already. This will identify those areas requiring further specific audit work to inform the VFM conclusion.

At this stage it is not possible to indicate the number or type of residual audit risks that might require additional audit 
work, and therefore the overall scale of work cannot be easily predicted. If a significant amount of work is necessary 
then we will need to review the adequacy of our agreed audit fee.

Identification of 
specific VFM audit 
work

If we identify residual audit risks, then we will highlight the risk to the Authority and consider the most appropriate 
audit response in each case, including:

! considering the results of work by the Authority, inspectorates and other review agencies; and

! carrying out local risk-based work to form a view on the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 27



17© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
VFM audit approach (continued)

Where relevant, we may 

draw upon the range of audit 

tools and review guides 

developed by the Audit 

Commission.

We have completed our 

initial risk assessment and 

have not identified any 

specific risks to our VFM 

conclusion at this stage. We 

will update our assessment 

at year end. 

We will conclude on the 

results of the VFM audit 

through our ISA 260 Report.

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Delivery of local risk 
based work

Depending on the nature of the residual audit risk identified, we may be able to draw on audit tools and sources of 
guidance when undertaking specific local risk-based audit work, such as:

! local savings review guides based on selected previous Audit Commission national studies; and

! update briefings for previous Audit Commission studies.

The tools and guides will support our work where we have identified a local risk that is relevant to them. For any 
residual audit risks that relate to issues not covered by one of these tools, we will develop an appropriate audit 
approach drawing on the detailed VFM guidance and other sources of information.

Concluding on VFM 
arrangements

At the conclusion of the VFM audit we will consider the results of the work undertaken and assess the assurance 
obtained against each of the VFM themes regarding the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

If any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment, and in particular if there are issues that 
indicate we may need to consider qualifying our VFM conclusion, we will discuss these with management as soon 
as possible. Such issues will also be considered more widely as part of KPMG’s quality control processes, to help 
ensure the consistency of auditors’ decisions.

Reporting We have completed our initial VFM risk assessment and have not identified any key issues. We will update our 
assessment throughout the year should any issues present themselves and report against these in our ISA260.

We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters 
arising, and the basis for our overall conclusion.

The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the Authority’s arrangements for 
securing VFM), which forms part of our audit report. 

P
age 28



18© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section seven
Audit team

Your audit team has been 

drawn from our specialist 

public sector assurance 

department. 

Contact details are shown 

on page 1.

The audit team will be 

assisted by other KPMG 

specialists as necessary.

“My role is to lead our 
team and ensure the 
delivery of a high quality, 
valued added external 
audit opinion.

I will be the main point of 
contact for the Audit 
Committee and Chief 
Executive.”

“I provide quality 
assurance for the audit 
work and specifically 
any technical accounting 
and risk areas. 

I will work closely with 
the partner to ensure we 
add value. 

I will liaise with the Chief 
Finance Officer.“Philip Johnstone

Director

Steve Lucas

Senior Manager

“I will be responsible for 
the on-site delivery of 
our work on the 
Authority’s financial 
statements. I will liaise 
with the finance team. I 
will also supervise the 
work of our audit 
assistants.”

Paul Henson

Assistant Manager

P
age 29



19© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section seven
Audit deliverables

At the end of each stage of 

our audit we issue certain 

deliverables, including 

reports, statements and 

opinions.

Our key deliverables will be 

delivered to a high standard 

and on time.

We will discuss and agree 

each report as appropriate 

with the Authority’s officers 

prior to publication.

Deliverable Purpose Committee dates

Planning

External Audit Plan ! Outlines our audit approach.

! Identifies areas of audit focus and planned procedures.

March 2015

Control evaluation and Substantive procedures

Report to Those 
Charged with 
Governance (ISA 260 
Report) 

! Details control and process issues.

! Details the resolution of key audit issues.

! Communicates adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.

! Highlights performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.

! Comments on the Authority’s value for money arrangements.

September 2015

Completion

Auditor’s Report ! Provides an opinion on the Authority’s and Pension Fund accounts (including the 
Annual Governance Statement).

! Concludes on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources (the VFM conclusion).

September 2015

Whole of Government 
Accounts

! Provide our assurance statement  on the Authority’s WGA pack submission. September 2015

Pension Fund Annual 
Report

! We provide an opinion on the consistency of the Pension Fund annual report with the 
Pension Fund accounts,

September 2015

Annual Audit Letter ! Summarises the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. November 2015

P
age 30



20© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section seven
Audit timeline

We will be in continuous 

dialogue with you throughout 

the audit.

Key formal interactions with 

the Audit Committee are:

! March – External Audit 

Plan;

! September – ISA 260 

Report.

We work with the finance 

team and internal audit 

throughout the year. 

Our main work on site will 

be our:

! Interim audit visits during 

March.

! Final accounts audit 

during July and August.

Regular meetings between the Engagement Lead and the Chief Executive and the Chief Finance Officer

A
u

d
it

 w
o

rk
fl

o
w

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep DecOct Nov

Presentation of 
the External 
Audit Plan

Presentation of the 
ISA260 Report for the 

Authority and the 
Pension Fund

Continuous liaison with the finance team and internal audit

Interim 
audit 
visit

Final accounts 
visit

Control 
evaluation

Audit planning
Substantive 
procedures

Completion

Key: " Audit Committee meetings.

Presentation of any 
findings from the 
interim audit visit

Presentation of 
Annual Audit 

Letter

P
age 31



21© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section seven
Audit fee

The main fee for 2014/15 

audit of the Authority is 

£266,120.  The fee for our 

audit of the Pension Fund is 

£21,000.  

Our audit fee remains 

indicative and based on you 

meeting our expectations of 

your support.

Meeting these expectations 

will help the delivery of our 

audit within the proposed 

audit fee.

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2014/15 presented to you in April 2014 first set 
out our fees for the 2014/15 audit. Due to the National Non Domestic 
Grant Return not requiring an audit certificate, the Audit Commission 
increased the fee scale by £2,600 to reflect the additional work 
required on the financial statements in relation to National Non 
Domestic Rates.  We have not considered it necessary to make any 
changes to the agreed fees at this stage.

Our main audit fee includes our work on the VFM conclusion and our 
audit of the Authority’s financial statements. The fee for 2014/15 is 
£266,120. This is consistent with the actual 2013/14 fee.

Audit fee assumptions

The fee is based on a number of assumptions, including that you will 
provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements, 
with good quality supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes. 
It is imperative that you achieve this. If this is not the case and we have 
to complete more work than was envisaged, we will need to charge 
additional fees for this work. In setting the fee, we have assumed:

! the level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is 
not significantly different from that identified for 2013/14;

! you will inform us of any significant developments impacting on our 
audit;

! you will identify and implement any changes required under the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 
2014/15 within your 2014/15 financial statements;

! you will comply with the expectations set out in our Accounts Audit 
Protocol, including:

– the financial statements are made available for audit in line with 
the agreed timescales;

– good quality working papers and records will be provided at the 
start of the final accounts audit;

– requested information will be provided within the agreed 
timescales;

– prompt responses will be provided to queries and draft reports; 

! internal audit meets appropriate professional standards and completes 
appropriate work on systems that provide material figures for the 
financial statements; and

! additional work will not be required to address questions or objections 
raised by local government electors or for special investigations such 
as those arising from disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 1998.

Meeting these expectations will help ensure the delivery of our audit 
within the agreed audit fee. The Audit Commission requires us to inform 
you of specific actions you could take to keep the audit fee low. Future 
audit fees can be kept to a minimum if the Authority achieves an efficient 
and well-controlled financial closedown and accounts production process 
which complies with good practice and appropriately addresses new 
accounting developments and risk areas.

Changes to the audit plan

Changes to this plan and the audit fee may be necessary if:

! new significant audit risks emerge;

! additional work is required of us by the Audit Commission or other 
regulators; and

! additional work is required as a result of changes in legislation, 
professional standards or financial reporting requirements.

If changes to this plan and the audit fee are required, we will discuss and 
agree these initially with the Chief Finance Officer.

Element of the audit 2014/15
(planned)

2013/14
(actual)

Main audit fee £266,120 £266,120

Pension Fund audit fee £21,000 £21,000

P
age 32



22© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices
Appendix 1: Independence and objectivity requirements

This appendix summarises 

auditors’ responsibilities 

regarding independence and 

objectivity.

Independence and objectivity

Auditors are required by the Code to: 

! carry out their work with independence and objectivity;

! exercise their professional judgement and act independently of both 
the Commission and the audited body;

! maintain an objective attitude at all times and not act in any way 
that might give rise to, or be perceived to give rise to, a conflict of 
interest; and

! resist any improper attempt to influence their judgement in the 
conduct of the audit.

In addition, the Code specifies that auditors should not carry out work 
for an audited body that does not relate directly to the discharge of the 
auditors’ functions under the Code. If the Authority invites us to carry 
out risk-based work in a particular area, which cannot otherwise be 
justified to support our audit conclusions, it will be clearly differentiated 
as work carried out under section 35 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998.

The Code also states that the Commission issues guidance under its 
powers to appoint auditors and to determine their terms of 
appointment. The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes several 
references to arrangements designed to support and reinforce the 
requirements relating to independence, which auditors must comply 
with. These are as follows:

! Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved 
in the management, supervision or delivery of Commission-related 
work, and senior members of their audit teams should not take part 
in political activity.

! No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an 
appointment as a member of an audited body whose auditor is, or 
is proposed to be, from the same firm. In addition, no member or 
employee of the firm should accept or hold such appointments at 
related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a 
strategic partnership.

! Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors 
at certain types of schools within the local authority.

! Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity 
(whether paid or unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation 
providing services to an audited body whilst being employed by the 
firm.

! Firms are expected to comply with the requirements of the 
Commission's protocols on provision of personal financial or tax 
advice to certain senior individuals at audited bodies, independence 
considerations in relation to procurement of services at audited 
bodies, and area wide internal audit work.

! Auditors appointed by the Commission should not accept 
engagements which involve commenting on the performance of 
other Commission auditors on Commission work without first 
consulting the Commission.

! Auditors are expected to comply with the Commission’s policy for 
the Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

! Audit suppliers are required to obtain the Commission’s written 
approval prior to changing any Engagement Lead in respect of 
each audited body.

! Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action 
to be taken by Firms as set out in the standing guidance.

P
age 33



23© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices 
Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

At KPMG we consider audit quality is not just about reaching the right 
opinion, but how we reach that opinion. KPMG views the outcome of a 
quality audit as the delivery of an appropriate and independent opinion 
in compliance with the auditing standards. It is about the processes, 
thought and integrity behind the audit report. This means, above all, 
being independent, compliant with our legal and professional 
requirements, and offering insight and impartial advice                          
to you, our client.

KPMG’s Audit Quality Framework consists of                                  
seven key drivers combined with the                                              
commitment of each individual in KPMG. We                                     
use our seven drivers of audit quality to                                       
articulate what audit quality means to KPMG. 

We believe it is important to be transparent                                                   
about the processes that sit behind a KPMG                                      
audit report, so you can have absolute                                      
confidence in us and in the quality of our audit.

Tone at the top: We make it clear that audit                                  
quality is part of our culture and values and                                
therefore non-negotiable. Tone at the top is the                              
umbrella that covers all the drives of quality through                              
a focused and consistent voice.  Neil Thomas as the                   
Engagement Lead sets the tone on the audit and leads by           
example with a clearly articulated audit strategy and commits a 
significant proportion of his time throughout the audit directing and 
supporting the team.

Association with right clients: We undertake rigorous client and 
engagement acceptance and continuance procedures which are vital to 
the ability of KPMG to provide high-quality professional services to our 
clients.

Clear standards and robust audit tools: We expect our audit 
professionals to adhere to the clear standards we set and we provide a 
range of tools to support them in meeting these expectations. The 
global rollout of KPMG’s eAudIT application has significantly enhanced 
existing audit functionality. eAudIT enables KPMG to deliver a highly 

technically enabled audit. All of our staff have a searchable data base, 
Accounting Research Online, that includes all published accounting  
standards, the KPMG Audit Manual Guidance as well as other relevant 
sector specific  publications,  such as the Audit Commission’s Code of 
Audit Practice.

Recruitment, development and assignment of                         
appropriately qualified personnel: One of the key 

drivers of audit  quality is assigning professionals 
appropriate to the Authority’s risks. We take great 

care to assign the right people to the right 
clients based on a number of factors      

including their skill set, capacity and relevant 
experience. 

We have a well developed technical 
infrastructure across the firm that puts us in 
a strong position to deal with any emerging

issues. This includes:      

- A national public sector technical director 
who has responsibility for co-ordinating our 

response to emerging accounting issues, 
influencing accounting bodies (such as 

CIPFA) as well as acting as a sounding board 
for our auditors. 

- A national technical network of public sector audit professionals is 
established that meets on a monthly basis and is chaired by our 
national technical director.

- All of our staff have a searchable data base, Accounting Research 
Online, that includes all published accounting standards, the KPMG 
Audit Manual Guidance as well as other relevant sector specific  
publications, such as the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice.

- A dedicated Department of Professional Practice comprised of over 
100 staff that provide support to our audit teams and deliver our web-
based quarterly technical training. 

We continually focus on 

delivering a high quality 

audit. 

This means building robust 

quality control procedures 

into the core audit process 

rather than bolting them on 

at the end, and embedding 

the right attitude and 

approaches into 

management and staff. 

KPMG’s Audit Quality 

Framework consists of 

seven key drivers combined 

with the commitment of each 

individual in KPMG.

The diagram summarises 

our approach and each level 

is expanded upon.

P
age 34



24© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices 
Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

Commitment to technical excellence and quality service delivery: 
Our professionals bring you up- the-minute and accurate technical 
solutions and together with our specialists are capable of solving 
complex audit issues and delivering valued insights. 

Our audit team draws upon specialist resources including Forensic, 
Corporate Finance, Transaction Services, Advisory, Taxation, Actuarial 
and IT. We promote technical excellence and quality service delivery 
through training and accreditation, developing business understanding 
and sector knowledge, investment in technical support, development of 
specialist networks and effective consultation processes. 

Performance of effective and efficient audits: We understand that 
how an audit is conducted is as important as the final result. Our 
drivers of audit quality maximise the performance of the engagement 
team during the conduct of every audit. We expect our people to 
demonstrate certain key behaviors in the performance of effective and 
efficient audits. The key behaviors that our auditors apply throughout 
the audit process to deliver effective and efficient audits are outlined 
below: 

! timely Engagement Lead and manager involvement;

! critical assessment of audit evidence;

! exercise of professional judgment and professional scepticism;

! ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching, supervision and 
review;

! appropriately supported and documented conclusions;

! if relevant, appropriate involvement of the Engagement Quality 
Control reviewer (EQC review);

! clear reporting of significant findings;

! insightful, open and honest two-way communication with those 
charged with governance; and

! client confidentiality, information security and data privacy.

Commitment to continuous improvement: We employ a broad 
range of mechanisms to monitor our performance, respond to feedback 
and understand our opportunities for improvement. 

Our quality review results

We are able to evidence the quality of our audits through the results of 
Audit Commission reviews. The Audit Commission publishes 
information on the quality of work provided by KPMG (and all other 
firms) for audits undertaken on behalf of them (http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-quality-review-
programme/principal-audits/kpmg-audit-quality). 

The latest Annual Regulatory Compliance and Quality Report (issued 
June 2014) showed that we are meeting the Audit Commission’s 
overall audit quality and regularity compliance requirements.

We continually focus on 

delivering a high quality 

audit. 

This means building robust 

quality control procedures 

into the core audit process 

rather than bolting them on 

at the end, and embedding 

the right attitude and 

approaches into 

management and staff. 

Quality must build on the 

foundations of well trained 

staff and a robust 

methodology. 

P
age 35



25© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

! Review of accounting 
policies.

! Results of analytical 
procedures.

! Procedures to identify fraud 
risk factors.

! Discussion amongst 
engagement personnel.

! Enquiries of management, 
Audit Committee, and 
others.

! Evaluate controls that 
prevent, deter, and detect 
fraud.

KPMG’s identification
of fraud risk factors

! Accounting policy 
assessment.

! Evaluate design of 
mitigating controls.

! Test effectiveness of 
controls.

! Address management 
override of controls.

! Perform substantive audit 
procedures.

! Evaluate all audit 
evidence.

! Communicate to Audit 
Committee and 
management./officers

KPMG’s response to
identified fraud

risk factors

! We will monitor the 
following areas throughout 
the year and adapt our 
audit approach 
accordingly.

– Revenue recognition.

– Management override 
of controls.

KPMG’s identified
fraud risk factors

! Adopt sound accounting 
policies.

! With oversight from those 
charged with governance, 
establish and maintain 
internal control, including 
controls to prevent, deter 
and detect fraud.

! Establish proper 
tone/culture/ethics.

! Require periodic 
confirmation by employees 
of their responsibilities.

! Take appropriate action in 
response to actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud.

! Disclose to Audit 
Committee and auditors:

– any significant 
deficiencies in internal 
controls.

– any fraud involving 
those with a significant 
role in internal controls.

Officers
responsibilities

Appendices
Appendix 3 : Assessment of fraud risk

We are required to consider

fraud and the impact that

this has on our audit

approach.

We will update our risk

assessment throughout the

audit process and adapt our

approach accordingly.

P
age 36



26© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The Audit Commission will 

be writing to audited bodies 

and other stakeholders in 

the coming months with 

more information about the 

transfer of the Commissions’ 

regulatory and other 

functions.  

From 1 April 2015 a transitional body, Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (PSAA), established by the Local Government 

Association (LGA) as an independent company, will oversee the 

Commission’s audit contracts until they end in 2017 (or 2020 if 

extended by DCLG). PSAA’s responsibilities will include setting fees, 

appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of auditors’ work. The 

responsibility for making arrangements for publishing the 

Commission’s value for money profiles tool will also transfer to PSAA. 

From 1 April 2015, the Commission’s other functions will transfer to 

new organisations: 

• responsibility for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice 

and guidance for auditors will transfer to the National Audit Office 

(NAO) for audits of the accounts from 2015/16; 

• the Commission’s responsibilities for local value for money studies 

will also transfer to the NAO; and

• the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) will transfer to the Cabinet 

Office. 

Appendices
Appendix 4: Transfer of Audit Commissions’ functions

P
age 37



© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the 
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and “cutting through complexity” are registered 
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

P
age 38



Audit 
Committee 

Effectiveness 
Training

Member briefing

London Borough of Brent

Agenda Item 6

Page 39



1© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

London Borough of Brent
Audit Committee Effectiveness Training

Background

CIPFA’s guidance ‘Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2013 Edition)’, 
suggests that the purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance independent 
assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance processes. In this way, audit committees are an 
important source of assurance about the organisation’s arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an effective 
control environment, and reporting on financial and other performance. Good governance is a feature of high 
performing organisations. 

KPMG have worked with a number of different public sector organisations to assess their governance 
arrangements and have delivered Board development programmes to a number of aspiring NHS Foundation 
Trusts. We have worked with the London Borough of Brent since 2012, as your external auditor, and have 
attended a number of your audit committee meetings. We therefore understand the Borough and the issues you 
are facing. 

We have been asked by the Chief Finance Officer to develop and deliver training to audit committee members to 
help them understand their role more fully and to improve the audit committee’s effectiveness. We have also 
been asked to include the Brent Housing Partnership Audit Committee’s members in the training. This document 
outlines how we propose to work with your audit committee members and the training that we will deliver.  

Purpose of this proposal

The use of this document is solely for internal purposes by the London Borough of Brent and it should not be 
copied or disclosed to any third party or otherwise quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior 
written consent.

Our approach

The training will involve:

• a review of documentation including audit committee papers and forward plan;

• observation of London Borough of Brent and Brent Housing Partnership audit committee meetings; 

• survey of audit committee members;

• face to face meetings with audit committee members in advance of the training; and 

• initial training session.

Following this initial training session, we intend to review progress with the Chief Finance Officer to consider 
whether an on-going development programme would be useful.

Page 40



2© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

London Borough of Brent
Audit Committee Effectiveness Training

Objectives

The objectives of our work are:

Objective Description of work to undertake

Objective One

Assess the 
committee’s 
effectiveness 
and look at the 
characteristics 
of an effective 
audit committee

We will assess the effectiveness of the Audit Committee. We will do this by observing the audit 
committee meetings. Our review will also consider:

• member induction and performance management; and

• performance reporting including the quality and timeliness of information provided to audit committee 
members.

Objective Two 

Ensure all 
members of the 
audit committee 
have a clear 
and shared 
understanding 
of their role

Deliver training to ensure that members have a shared understanding of their role. We will explore 
members’ understanding of the role through a questionnaire and also through face to face meetings with 
members individually to ensure that we understand their training needs.  The training will cover:

• The purpose of an audit committee;

• The core functions of an audit committee (including the Annual Governance Statement, internal 
audit, risk management, countering fraud and corruption, external audit and financial reporting; and 

• The characteristics of effective committees.

Objective 
Three

Provide training 
on some of the 
softer skills that 
will help the 
members to 
become more 
effective in their 
role. 

This part of the training will focus on some of the practical and softer skills needed to be an effective 
audit committee member and will include:

• Preparation for the meeting (reading materials, areas to probe, additional information requests and 
use of pre-meetings); 

• Techniques for effective challenge (questioning style, Member / Member challenge, Member / Officer 
challenge.

Key contacts

In order to undertake this work we will require meetings with:

• Conrad Hall, Chief Finance Officer;

• Members of the London Borough of Brent Audit Committee, and 

• Members of the Brent Housing Partnership Audit Committee.

This list is not exhaustive and we may require additional meetings, as our work evolves. 

Page 41



3© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Resourcing

The staff identified to conduct this review have been drawn from our public sector team and have been selected
due to their experience of working with local authorities and also for their experience in performing board
governance reviews.

Outputs

At the conclusion of our work we will present a short report for discussion with the Chief Finance Officer and the 
audit committees. The report will include our main observations, recommendations and areas for development.

Timetable

The timetable for this review is shown below:

London Borough of Brent
Audit Committee Effectiveness Training

Due date Task Responsibility

Local Authority KPMG

January 2015 Agree project brief ! !

Fieldwork

7 Jan & 24 March 2015 Observe LB Brent Audit Committee ! !

March 2015 Commence information gathering (off site) !

TBC Observe Brent Housing Partnership meeting !

March & April 2015 Questionnaire completed by audit committee
members

!

April & May 2015 Audit Committee member interviews !

June 2015 Training Session !

Reporting

July 2015 Discuss draft report with Chief Finance Officer ! !

End of July 2015 Final report issued !

Documentation request

We list below documentation we would like to review in advance of our fieldwork.  This list is not exhaustive 
and we may request further documentation.  If you feel that there are other documents that would assist the 
review which are not listed below we would be grateful if you could also provide them.  We will require these 
documents for the London Borough of Brent and the Brent Housing Partnership.

• Audit Committee papers and minutes from the last two meetings;

• Forward plan for Audit Committee;

• Induction and training plan for Audit Committee members and

• Any previous self assessment completed by the Audit Committee;

• CVs of Audit Committee members; and

• Committee Structure, terms of reference, membership, timings and frequency of meetings.

Page 42



4© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Actions for audit committee members

Pre face to face meeting

We need you to complete a brief CV and a questionnaire. Completed individual CVs and questionnaires will not
be shared with anyone other than KPMG staff and remain confidential. However, common themes arising from
the questionnaires will be shared as part of the report and the training session. We will ask for audit committee
members to provide their name on the questionnaire so that the face to face meeting can tailored to an individual
members’ needs.

The form of the CV is up to the individual audit committee member but if possible can you please include:

• The amount of time that you have been a councillor

• Any business or financial experience or training – either outside or inside the council

• Any audit committee or scrutiny committee experience

• Other council committee experience

We would like completed CV and questionnaires to be sent to Sally-Anne Eldridge at Sally-Anne.
Eldridge@kpmg.co.uk.

Questions

If you have any questions about the training please do not hesitate to contact Phil Johnstone or Sally-Anne 
Eldridge (details shown below):

Email: Philip.Johnstone@kpmg.co.uk

Telephone: 020 7311 2091

Mobile: 077 6974 2275

Email: Sally-Anne.Eldridge@kpmg.co.uk

Telephone: 020 7311 2146

Mobile: 077 1754 4148

London Borough of Brent
Audit Committee Effectiveness Training

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Audit Committee 
24 March 2015 

Report from the Chief 
Finance Officer 

For Information    
 

 Wards  affected: All 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2014/15 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. This report provides an update on progress against the internal audit plan for the period 
1st April 2014 to 28th February 2015. The report also provides a summary of counter fraud 
work for 2014/15.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. That Audit Committee notes the progress made in achieving the 2014/15 Internal Audit 
Plan and the update on counter fraud. 

3. Detail 

Internal Audit 

3.1. The Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15 comprises 1,200 days. 905 days will be delivered by 
Mazars. The in-house resource delivers a further 295 days. The key points to note with 
regard to progress for the current year are: 

 
• 840 days 
have been 
delivered 
of a total 
of 1,200. 

 

• There are  84 
projects on the 
current plan 
(excluding 
follow up and 
advisory 
work).50 
projects have 
been 
completed to 
draft or final 
stage 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



 
 

• 39 of these have an audit opinion 
associated with them, 28 are 
substantial, 10  are limited and 1 
received a full assurance rating. The 
other projects were grant certifications 
which do not have an assurance rating 
attached. 

 

3.2. A summary report setting out the completed audit work is attached as Appendix 1. The 
status of all projects planned is set out in table 1 below.  

 

Audit Plan 
Days 

Total days 
delivered Progress Assurance 

Opinion  

Assistant Chief Executive         

Public Health Grant Receiving 
Organisations 10 6 WIP   

Review of Payment Processes to 
Public Health Suppliers and Grant 
Recipients 

3 3 Final Report  Not 
Applicable 

Review of Security of Personal 
Data across PH Providers 10 10 Draft Report 

(11/2/15)  
Not 
Applicable 

Contracts with Public Health 
Funded Organisations 20 1 Q4   

Public Health Board Meetings 5 4 Ongoing   

ACE Total  48 24 

7 days added 
back to 
contingency for 
Payments 

  

          

Adult Social Care         

Adult Commissioning 15  1 WIP   

Carers  10 10 Draft Report 
(4/2/15) Substantial 

Mental Health  15 15 Final Report Substantial 

Safeguarding 15 15 Draft Report 
(22/12/14) Substantial 

Appointeeship & Deputyship 15 14 Final Report Limited 

Personalisation - Direct Payments 
& Personal Budgets 20 20 WIP   

Supporting People  12 12 Final Report Substantial 

Page 46



 
 

          

ASC Total  102 87     

          

Schools         

Anson 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Barham 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Kilburn Park Junior 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Michael Sobell Sinai 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Park Lane 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Preston Park 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

St Margaret Clitherow 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

St Andrews and St Francis 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Oakington Manor 10 8 WIP   

St Mary's RC 10 2     

Princess Frederica 10 10 Final Report Limited 

Islamia 10 0 Q4   

JFS 10 10 Final Report Limited 

The Village School 10 10 Q4  

Newman Catholic College 10 10 Q4  

Malorees Infants 10 10 Q4  

Follow up work for the schools with 
Limited Assurance  7 5 On going   

Schools Total 167 115   

     

Children and Young People       
Troubled Families Certification 
Report 15 10 Draft Report 

(10/11/14) 
Not 
Applicable 

Troubled Families Grant Claim 
Certification Families Worked with 
June 2013 

6 6 Final Report  Certified 

Troubled Families Grant  Claim 
Certification Payment By Results 
August 2014 

6 8 Final Report  Certified 

Troubled Families Grant  Claim 
Certification Payment By Results 
October 2014 

6 8 Final Report  Certified 

Troubled Families Grant  Claims 
January 2015 12 8 Final Report  Certified 

Page 47



 
 

Adoption Allowance Grant 
Certification 1 1 Final Report  Certified 

Adoption Allowances 12 12 Final Report Not 
Applicable 

Care Leavers  10 10 Final Report Substantial 

No Recourse to Public Funds 
(Adolescent Prevention Service)  10 15 Final Report Limited 

School Admissions 12 12 Final Report Substantial 

          

C&YP Total  90 90     

          

Finance          

Accounts Payable 15 8 WIP   
Accounts Receivable & Income 
Management  18 2 WIP   

General Ledger & Cash 
Management 18 14 WIP   

One Oracle Project 5 5 Completed   

Treasury Management 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

          

Finance Total 75 39     

          

Human Resources         

Pension Administration 15 2 WIP   

Payroll  20  10 WIP   

HR Total 35 12     

         

IT          

Information Governance 20 20 Final Report  Substantial 

Acolaid  15 15 Draft Report 
(19/2/15) Substantial 

IT Digital Delivery 15 3 WIP   
One Oracle Post Implementation – 
Data Migration 20 9 WIP   

Echo 12 12 Final Report Limited 

IT Contracts  10 10 Final Report Limited 

Contingency for IT projects 5       

Follow up  10 8 Throughout Year   

IT Total 107 77     

          

ENVIRONMENT & 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES         

Page 48



 
 

Parking  20 10 WIP   

Parking Contract (Special Project) 16 16 Final Report Substantial 

Highways Contract (Special Project 16 16 Final Report Substantial 

Highways Maintenance 12 1 WIP   

Public Realm Contracts – Waste & 
Recycling  12 12 Final Report Substantial 

Vale Farm Contract 8 3 WIP   
Licensing (Alcohol & 
Entertainment) 15 15 Final Report  Limited 

Street Tree Contract  10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Barham Park Trust Accounts 5 5 Final Report Unqualified 

E&N Total 114 88     

          

Legal and Procurement         

Category Management  15 1 WIP   

Members – Declarations of 
Interests & Gifts and Hospitality 10 6 WIP   

Election Expenses 10 8 Final Report  Substantial 

Procurement 20 2 WIP   

L & P Total  55 17     

          
 

Regeneration and Growth         

Capital Projects (contract audits - 
Crest Academy) 15 15 Final Report Substantial 

Capital Projects (contract audits - 
Stonebridge School Expansion and 
Re-development of Surrounding 
Area) 

15 15 Final Report  Full 

Civic Centre Project (Final 
Accounts) 15   Q4   

Choice Based Lettings/ Housing 
Allocations 15 12 WIP   

Income from Civic Centre (Melting 
Pot & Other Hire Facilities) 10 10 Final Report Limited 

Facilities Management  10 10 Final Report  Substantial 

Council Tax 10 10 Final Report Substantial 

Page 49



 
 

Local Council Support Scheme 
(formerly Council Tax Benefit) 10 7 WIP   

National Non Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 10 10 Final Report  Substantial 

Local Welfare Assistance Scheme 10 10 Final Report  Substantial 

Discretionary Housing Payments 10 9 WIP   

Concessionary Fares 10 3 WIP   

Blue Badges 10 3 WIP   

          

R&G Total 150 114     

          

BHP         

Former Tenants Arrears 15 15 Final Report Limited 

Procurement  20   Q4   

Payroll SLA 12  3 Q4   

TMO (To cover either Watling 
Gardens or Kilburn Square) 15   Q4   

Tree Management 8 6 WIP   

Garages 4 4 Final Report Non 
Assurance 

Lift Maintenance 12 12 Final Report Substantial 

Accounts Payable 8 3 WIP   

General Ledger 7 3 WIP  

Complaints  12 10 WIP   

IT Audit – New Leasehold 
Management System 
Implementation (Pre & Post 
Migration) or Application on new 
system. 

10   Q4   

Follow Up Audits 12 7     

Consultation, Communication, 
Reporting  15 12     

         

BHP Total  150 75      

          

OTHER          

Risk Management 15 13     

Governance & Audit Planning 10  5     

Consultation, Communication and 
Reporting (Mazars) 55 50     

Page 50



 
 

Follow-Up 45 32     

Contingency 10 0    

OTHER Total 135 100     

          

Total 1200 840     
Table 1 – Planned Projects and Progress as at 28/02/15 

3.3. In addition to the programmed work set out above, seventeen follow up reports have been 
issued. Eleven have been finalised. Within these, 89% of recommendations have been 
implemented.  

3.4. A summary of delivery is shown below 
 

Delivery Status 
Total days in the plan 1200  
Number of days delivered to date 840  
% of days delivered to date 70% 

Days to be delivered 360 
Total number of projects (excluding follow up reports and Committee reports) 84 
Number of reports / certifications issued to date 49 
% of draft and final reports issued to date 60% 
Number of final reports issued  44 
% of draft reports finalised 90% 

Table 2 – Delivery Status as at 28/02/15 

3.5. The Strategic Directors of Adult Social Care and Environment and Neighbourhoods (or 
their representatives) will be present to discuss their service’s response to the limited 
assurance reports into the audit of Appointeeship and Deputyship and the Echo IT 
application. Members will be sent the full audit reports separately. 

3.6. Members will recall that at the previous meeting they received a report from the council’s 
external auditors concerning the certification of the housing benefit claim. A number of 
issues were raised in their audit concerning, primarily, the calculation of entitlement in self 
employed cases. Andy Donald, Strategic Director of Regeneration and Growth and Andy 
Monkley, Subsidy and Policy Manager, were present to explain their response to the 
findings. An action plan had already been developed by the department and Members 
sought an update in 6 months time. Andy Monkley was asked to provide a brief written 
update on progress to date to this committee. His comments are shown below: 

 
“In accordance with the action plan, all staff have now been briefed on self employed 
procedures and the self employed expenses spreadsheet has been live since 
02/02/15.  The filenote template is now live but as we have added additional 
functionality to link directly into the expenses spreadsheet and to prompt officers for 
certain information, it did take longer than expected to complete.  All staff will be 
briefed on using the filenote template – which will be a compulsory part of assessing 
a claim – by 20/03/15.    

 
All new self employed claims are now being checked; sample checking of cases 

Page 51



 
 

already in payment is also now in place. To assist in resourcing this exercise, 
we have bid for – and received - funding from the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP). To date we have checked 31 cases and we need to check 
approximately 390 cases in total to complete the work detailed in the action 
plan.  The work is expected to be completed by 24 April which is three weeks 
behind schedule but well in advance of the next subsidy audit.” 

3.7. In relation to school audits, Members receive copies of all schools reports issued. 
Members will note the recent limited assurance rating for JFS and, earlier, Princess 
Frederica. Members may wish to consider whether they should request attendance at 
committee of either Head Teachers or Chairs of Governing Bodies. However, there are a 
number of complexities in the relationship with schools concerning financial management. 
Members will be aware that budgets are fully delegated to schools and may be spent as 
governing bodies determine within a financial framework set out in both statute and within 
the financial regulations for schools. However, the council’s Chief Finance Officer also has 
a fiduciary duty over the funds for all maintained schools, whether these are community, 
voluntary aided or foundation. The employment relationship is also different for 
Foundation and Voluntary Aided schools where the local authority is not the employer. 
Any request for attendance would need to be via an invite through the Governing Body 
and the council would need to consider how it would deal with a refusal to attend. 
Although there is always the threat of removing financial delegation, this is a significant 
step and requires sufficient justification. It would also mean the local authority would need 
to resource the financial administration for the school in question. 

Internal Fraud 

3.8. Internal fraud refers to fraud committed by employees, agency staff and staff in 
maintained schools. For the purposes of this report, “fraud” includes instances of theft, 
fraud, misappropriation, falsification of documents, undisclosed conflicts of interest and 
serious breach of financial regulations.  Activity for the year to date is shown in table 3 
below: 

 

Internal 
As at 

28/02/15 2013/14 

New Referrals 33 55 

Closed Cases 42 44 

Fraud / Irregularity identified  15 16 

Dismissal 5 11 

Resignation 5 2 

Warning 5 2 

Cases Under Active Investigation 8  

Table 3 – Internal Fraud 2014/15 

3.9. The team has received six new allegations since the last reporting period. Five cases 
have been closed in which one irregularity was identified concerning misuse of a blue 
badge. The officer resigned prior to action being taken.  

3.10. Performance in relation to the length of time internal investigations take is a key priority for 

Page 52



 
 

the team. The time taken (in weeks) from receipt of a case to the issue of a draft report to 
management is shown below. The team has an internal target of an average of 13 weeks 
from receipt of an allegation to issue of a draft report to management. Clearly, some 
cases will take longer than 13 weeks due to their complexity. The team is currently 
averaging 15 weeks for all closed cases. The deterioration is explained by a number of 
historic National Fraud Initiative cases being finalised which, previously, had a low priority 
within the team. Within these open cases, there is only one member of staff who is 
currently suspended (employee has since resigned in March 2015).    

 

At 28/2/15 Number 

Average 
Time in 
weeks 

Less 
than 3 
Months 

3 to 6 
months 

More 
than 6 
months 

Closed 
Disciplinary 

                                                                              
15  

                                            
15  53% 33% 13% 

Closed NFA 
                       
27  

                                            
15  56% 30% 15% 

Closed All 
                                                                              
42  

                                           
15  55% 31% 14% 

Open Cases 
                                                                                
8  

                                            
16  63% 13% 25% 

Table 4 – Turnaround Times Internal Fraud 2014/15 

 
Housing Tenancy Fraud 

3.11. Recovery of social housing properties has a significant impact upon the temporary 
accommodation budget. The Audit Commission have estimated that the average value, 
nationally, of each recovered tenancy is £18,000*. As at 31/1/15 the Audit and 
Investigation team had recovered 39 social housing tenancies and refused 4 applications 
for housing. Three families had their property size reduced (having applied for a larger 
property than necessary) following investigations. Caseload information is set out in table 
6 below.  

 

Housing Fraud As at 28/2/15 2013/14 

New Referrals 298 216 

Closed Cases 274 222 

Fraud Found 54 49 

Recovered Properties 45 46 

Applications Refused 4 0 

Property Size Reduced 
(Rehousing) 

5 3 

Value of properties recovered* £810,000 £828,000 

Open Cases Under Investigation 169  

Table 5 – Housing Fraud 2014/15 

3.12. Referrals are rising due to increased liaison with registered providers. Twenty one 
providers in the borough have been approached and a number are already making 
referrals to the council. 

Page 53



 
 

 
Other External Fraud 

3.13. This category includes all other external fraud/irregularity cases, such as blue badge, 
direct payments and council tax 

Other External Fraud 
As at 

31/01/15 
2013/14 

New Referrals 73 44 

Closed Cases 71 55 

Fraud / Irregularity  21 32 

Prosecution 1 11 

Warning / Caution 3 16 

Overpayment Identified 17 5 

Open Cases Under Investigation 29  

 
Table 6 – Other External Fraud 2014/15 

 

3.14. Since the previous committee meeting, two further cases of fraud have been identified. 
These relate to false claims for single person discount with a total value of £14,000. 

3.15. In November and December 2014 the following proactive anti-fraud exercises were 
conducted: 

Staff expenses 
A proactive exercise was undertaken to examine staff expenses, including the procedures 
adopted to approve and authorise payments. The main purpose was to consider whether 
the expense claims were genuine and had sufficient supporting documentation to approve 
the claim and make payment. A sample of claims made between April 2014 and 
September 2014 were analysed. It is positive to note that no fraud was identified although 
one duplicate claim for mileage expenses was paid. This was valued at £336 and is being 
dealt with via recovery. 

Garage Audit 
There are currently 1,200 council garages shown as void, although this list is likely to 
include demolished garages. Of these a sample of some 400 was selected for verification 
visits to check whether or not they were occupied. 17 garages were identified in phase 1 
of this exercise as appearing to have signs of use. These will be followed up. Issues have 
been identified with the numbering of garages and phase 2 of the exercise will be 
undertaken once BHP have completed a garage asset review.  

Business Rates – Empty Property Relief  
A list was obtained of all empty business premises. A sample of 28 cases was selected for 
visits. Of these, 13 were found to have signs occupation. These are being reviewed by the 
client team in Revenue and Benefits. Exact savings figures will be reported to the next 
meeting. 

Housing Tenancies vs Tenants placed in permanent care homes  

Page 54



 
 

The objective of this proactive is to isolate cases where tenants may have gone into 
permanent care and for various reasons this has not been communicated to BHP. The 
initial sample for verification is 16. Early indications are that around six of these cases 
require immediate investigation. 

The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
The council submitted various data sets to the Audit Commission as required under the 
NFI. Some 14,500 matches were received by A&I in mid January 2015 indicating potential 
irregularities across a number of matches. The council has sent 4,500 of these matches to 
the Department for Work and Pensions as they relate to potential housing benefit fraud. 
An update on progress will be given at the next meeting.  

4. Financial Implications 

4.1. The total value of the audit contract with Croydon Council, delivered by Mazars, is 
£300,000 in the current year and is funded within the Audit and Investigations base 
budget. If the total number of audit days attributable to Mazars is less than the 905 days 
allocated, then the total amount paid will reduce accordingly. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1. None 

6. Diversity Implications 

6.1. None 

7. Background Papers 

8. Contact Officer Details 
 

Simon Lane, Head of Audit & Investigation, Civic Centre, First Floor West. 
Telephone – 020 8937 1260 

 
Conrad Hall 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit  
4th Progress Report 2014/15 
London Borough of Brent 

March 2015 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 57



 
 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015 

 

Contents               Page No 
 
 

Executive Summary 1 

Limited Assurance Reports – General Audits 4 

Limited /Nil Assurance Reports – Schools 15 

Non Assurance Work 20 

Follow-Up of Previously Raised Recommendations 22 

Appendix B – Audit Team and Contact Details 26 

 
 

P
age 58



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      1 

Executive Summary  

Introduction This report sets out a summary of the work completed against the 2014/15 Internal Audit Plans, 
including the assurance opinions awarded and any high priority recommendations raised.  
Those audits reported on at previous meetings have been removed, but reference can be made to the 
full list of assurance opinions in the cover report. 

 
Summary of Work 
Undertaken 

Final Reports issued in respect of the 2014/15 financial year since the last meeting are as follows: 
• Council Tax 
• NNDR 
• Public Realm Contract 
• Local Welfare Assistance Scheme 
• Capital Project – Stonebridge School Expansion and Redevelopment of Surrounding Area 
• Capital Project – Crest Academies 
• Information Governance 
• Mental Health – Assessment, Approval & Review   
• Licensing (Alcohol and Entertainment) 
• JFS 
• Election Expenses 
• Echo Application 
• Lift Maintenance (BHP) 

 

P
age 59



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      2 

Detailed summary of work undertaken  
 
FULL / SUBSTANTIAL ASSURANCE REPORTS: 2014 /15  
 

Audit Assurance Opinion and Direction of Travel 

General and Computer Audits 

Council Tax 

 
NNDR 

 
Public Realm Contract 

 
Local Welfare Assistance  

 
Mental Health – Assessment, 
Approval & Review 

 
Capital Project - Stonebridge School 
Expansion and Redevelopment of 
Surrounding Areas 
 

 

Capital Project – Crest Academies 

 

F 

P
age 60



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      3 

Audit Assurance Opinion and Direction of Travel 

Election Expenses 

 
Information Governance  

 
Lift Maintenance BHP 

 

 
 
  

P
age 61



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      4 

Limited Assurance Reports – General Audits 
For all Limited Assurance reports, we have included a brief rationale, together with details of any priority 1 recommendations 
raised, including the agreed actions to be taken and deadlines for implementation. These are the key audits and recommendations, 
which the Committee should be focusing on from a risk perspective. The only exception is for any BHP reports, for which the details 
are reported separately to the BHP Audit & Finance Sub-Committee. 

Licensing (Alcohol & Entertainment Licences)  

The Council is the licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) and is responsible for granting premises 
licences, club premises certificates, temporary event notices and personal licences in the London Borough of Brent. The 
Act provides a clear focus on the four statutory objectives, which the Council must seek to promote when determining an 
application. The statutory objectives are as follows: 
• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder; 
• Public Safety; 
• Prevention of Public Nuisance; and 
• Protection of Children from Harm.  
In accordance with the Act, the Council has published a “Statement of Licensing Policy” setting out the policies that the 
Council will generally apply to meet the licensing objectives when determining applications.  
In addition to the licences that fall under the Act and dealt with by the Licensing team, the Council also issues other types 
of licences including Animal Licences (regulated by the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963), street trading licences 
(controlled by the London Local Authorities Act 1990) and other shops and trading licences, building and planning 
licences, marriage, partnership and worship licences, and licences relating to roads and highways.  
For the purpose of this audit work, we focused on licences that are administered by the Licence Team.  
Following the restructure in 2013/14, the administrative function of licensing is now delivered by the Brent Integrated 
Business Support (BIBS), along with a Licensing Applications Officer and three Licensing Inspectors. Under the new 
structure, BIBS are now responsible for processing licence applications, raising invoice requests, dealing with refunds on 
failed applications. The Central Sundry Debt Recovery team are responsible for following up the licence debtors.  
The Licensing Applications Officer and Licensing Inspectors report to the Senior Regulatory Service Manager who 
oversees three areas of services including Public Health, Licensing, and Public Safety. 
 
Key areas of were as follows: Reconciliation of license applications and the application fees collected; reconciliation of 
license annual fees due and the invoices raised; management of debtors; tracking of applications and annual fees; 

 
 

P
age 62



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      5 

management information;  Inspections; and overarching Policies and Procedures. 
Seven Priority 1 and eight priority 2 recommendations were raised as a result of this audit. 

 
Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 

Policies and Procedures and compliance with 
Licensing Act 2003  
Policies and procedures should be put in place 
outlining the key process to follow for each type of 
license application. This should include, but not be 
limited to: 
• The statutory timeframes for uploading 
applications onto the system, and other 
statutory/Council timeframes for key stages of the 
application process; 
• The consultation and hearing periods; 
• The relevant authorities to contact during the 
consultation period; 
• The relevant inspections required and the 
timeframes for completion; 
• The appeal process and the officers 
responsible for dealing with appeals; 
• The roles and responsibilities of all officers 
involved in processing applications; 
• The documentation required to be retained 
for each application; and 
• The officers responsible for undertaking 
quality checks to check license applications for 
accuracy prior to licenses being issued and the 
extent of checks required. 
In addition, all applications should be uploaded onto 
the system on either the day, or the following day 

Policies: A comprehensive review of the Licensing Statement 
(encompassing alcohol and entertainment), Gambling Policy and 
Enforcement Policy are all underway. 
 
Procedures: Procedures and / or visual processing flow charts are agreed 
and will encompass as a minimum all issues raised during this audit. 
 
Head of Regulatory Services to take proposals for revised Gambling, 
Enforcement and Licensing Policies to Cabinet in 2015. 
 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager will lead on producing procedures, 
and these will be in place by 31July 2015. 

P
age 63



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      6 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 
from receipt of the application. 

Licence application fees  
All license application fees (for all types of licenses) 
and annual fees (for premises licenses) should be 
charged consistently and in line with the Licensing 
Act 2003. For premises and major variances to 
premises license applications, evidence of the 
rateable value at the time payment is requested 
should be retained so the Council can confirm that 
the correct fee was applied in the event of being 
challenged. Any cases where the rateable value is 
unknown, or the premises is under construction at 
the time the application or annual fee is due should 
be charged appropriately and closely monitored so 
that any additional fees required can be invoiced 
when the rateable value is eventually known. The 
date the rateable value becomes known should be 
clearly recorded and evidence retained of the 
rateable value of the premises on that date. 
Furthermore, the number of applications received, 
licenses issued and income received should be 
reconciled and monitored at least monthly. The 
exceptions identified in our testing should be 
followed up immediately. 

Evidence of rateable value retention: Agreed, although implementation will 
necessitate a time-consuming additional process of screen shot attachment. 
 
Reconciliation: Agreed, although the licensing computer system does not 
have the capability to do this, and the One Oracle system is not configured 
to facilitate this. 
 
Test case exceptions: Agreed. 
 
 
Integrated Business Support Team Leader to implement rateable value 
evidence retention by 30 April 2015. 
 
Reconciliation: Senior Regulatory Service Manager will include this in 
the specification for a replacement licensing computer system by 30 
June 2015. A budget to fund a new system and implementation costs is 
yet to be found. Stephen Ward will configure 1Oracle and separate 
cashiers system to provide a breakdown of licensing income by type 
by 30 June 2015. 
 
Test case exceptions: Already completed. 

DBS Certificate 
DBS certificates obtained, as part of the personal 
licence application process should be kept for no 
longer than required. DBS certificates should be 
disposed of when the Council have confirmed that 
the applicant has no prior convictions. Where 
convictions are identified, a copy of the DBS 
certificate should be retained securely until the issue 

Agreed.   
 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager will ensure that digital DBS 
records are deleted at the point of licence granting from 1 April 2015, 
and incorporate requirement in operating procedures by 31 July 2015. 
 

P
age 64



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      7 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 
is resolved, when it should then be destroyed, and 
appropriate disposal methods should be 
implemented to ensure proper disposal. 

Inspections  
Inspections should be undertaken in a timely 
manner and the results of the inspections clearly 
recorded on ICasework. The Council should ensure 
that an appropriate mechanism is put in place to 
determine areas or individuals, which are deemed 
“high risk”, and each application undertakes a risk 
assessment prior to deciding on the required 
inspection frequency. Furthermore, appropriate 
management oversight of inspections should be 
adopted to ensure inspections are being undertaken 
completely and in a timely manner. 

Agreed. 
 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager will ensure that inspections are 
recorded within 3 working days of completion from 1 April 2015, and 
that a risk-based and inspection programme is established within 3 
months of installation of a licensing computer system capable of 
managing this. 
 

Invoicing  
Reports showing all accounts, which require an 
annual invoice, should be produced on a monthly 
basis and reconciled against invoice request totals 
sent to FSC from BIBS. This, in turn, should be 
reconciled against the total invoices issued. 
Evidence of the reconciliation should be retained 
and any discrepancies followed up immediately. 

Agreed, although a replacement licensing computer system is a prerequisite 
to full implementation. In the mean time, it will be possible to reconcile 
invoices requested by BIBS against those issued by FSC. 
 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager will include this in the specification 
for a replacement licensing computer system and Head of Regulatory 
Services will identify funding options to purchase a new system. 
Integrated Business Support Team Leader will implement 
reconciliation of invoices processed by 30 April 2015. 

Debt Recovery  
Debt recovery action should be undertaken in a 
timely and complete manner and in line with the 
Council requirements. The current debtors reporting 
process between FSC and Regulatory Services 
should be reviewed and appropriate procedures 
should be put in place to allow for effective reporting 

Agreed. We will review system to use unlicensed trading powers rather than 
civil debt recovery; we will also review bad debt arrangements too. We will 
also investigate payment terminals for inspectors. Any changes will be 
implemented and documented in operating procedures by 30 Sept 2015. 
 
The Team Leader of Debt Recovery and Income Collection and the 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager will implement changes by 30 June 

P
age 65



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      8 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 
and monitoring of debtors. Interim measure should 
be put in place to cross check the Old debtor 
balances, receipts on the new system, and new 
debtor balances to obtain accurate picture of the 
debtor balances until the system issues are resolved 
on One Oracle and the debt management reports 
area produced. 

2015 and the Senior Regulatory Service Manager will document new 
arrangements in operating procedures by 31 July 2015. 
 

System Tracking  
The Council should ensure that systems allow for 
appropriate tracking of applications and invoices, as 
well as the production of reports to assist with 
management reporting and performance monitoring. 
It is understood that the Senior Regulatory Service 
Manager is currently exploring alternative systems 
to help streamline the application process. As part of 
this, the Council should consider the system’s 
functionality including the tracking capability, 
automated workflows, and management information. 

Agreed, although a replacement licensing computer system is a pre-
requisite to implementation. 
 
The Senior Regulatory Service Manager will include this in the 
specification for a replacement licensing computer system and the 
Head of Regulatory Services will identify funding options to purchase a 
new system. The Senior Regulatory Service Manager will implement 
and documented changes within 3 months of system replacement. 
 

 
  

P
age 66



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      9 

Appointeeship & Deputyship 

Appointeeship 
Appointeeship is granted when an individual is unable to manage their state benefits either because of mental incapacity 
or severe physical disability and have insufficient other assets to qualify for Deputyship under the Court of Protection and 
no other person or organisation has been identified as being suitable to undertake this role.    
An Appointee is responsible for: 
• Claiming state benefits and signing forms for the individual; 
• Collecting/receiving state benefits for the individual; 
• Making appropriate payments on behalf of the individual including charges for care; 
• Ensuring that the individual, if in residential care, receives their Personal Expenses Allowance; and 
• Reporting any changes in circumstances to the DWP.   
An Appointee has no authority to manage other aspects of an individual’s financial affairs such as assets held on deposit 
in bank or building society accounts or superannuation payments from a former employer, except in certain 
circumstances.   The powers invested in an Appointeeship are overridden when a Deputy is appointed and if the service 
user has made enduring power of attorney arrangements whilst he/she was mentally capable.   
 
Deputyship  
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 provides a legal framework to protect vulnerable adults who are unable to manage some or 
all of their finances and property where they lack the mental capacity to do so.  The Act provides the Court of Protection 
with the power to appoint Deputies to act in the best interests of individuals who lack the capacity to manage their 
finances.   
Where an individual has assets, which are substantially over the level of state benefits, an Appointee, must instigate an 
application to the Court of Protection (COP) for the appointment of a Deputy.  The Deputy acts as a statutory agent whose 
powers are limited and specified in the Court Order that appointed the agent.   A Deputy has power to do all things in 
relation to the property and financial affairs of the individual that the Court of Protection orders or authorises.  In general, 
the Deputy is responsible for receiving the person’s income from all sources. This must then be used to pay the 
individual’s living costs and to settle any debts.  Any surplus must be used for the individual’s benefit, which would also 
include prudent reinvestment of income to reflect their short and long-term requirements.    The Council can charge a fee 
for undertaking this role, with fees being set by the Court of Protection.   
From 2013, the Council no longer accepts any new Appointeeship clients (unless there are exceptional circumstances).  

 
 

P
age 67



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      10 

The decision was previously made, primarily, due to cost pressure and the inability to collect any fees from the 
Appointeeship clients to recover the administration costs. This is expected to result in an increase in the number of 
Deputyship clients managed by the Council.  However, the Council are now planning to charge for appointee and the 
Council may start accepting new Appointeeship clients once the plan is finalised.  
Key areas of were as follows: • Documentation for Appointeeship & Deputyship clients not always retained on 
Framework I to support applications, income received and expenditures paid; exceptions identified by Softbox are not 
resolved within a timely manner;  Softbox Exceptions reports  not flagging all exceptions; and reconciliations not being 
carried out on a monthly basis. 
Four priority 1, eleven priority 2 and one priority 3 recommendations were raised as a result of this audit. 

 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 

Policies and Procedures (Priority 1)  
The Client Affairs Team should either update the 
current Procedures Manual to incorporate the 
process for Appointeeship Clients or produce a 
separate document outlining the policies and 
procedures.  This should be signed off by the Head 
of Service.   

Agreed. 
 
Implemented.  

Security of Client’s Personal Property (Priority 1) 
An annual audit should be carried out on all valuable 
items within the safe, with the inventory sheets 
updated accordingly.  Any discrepancies identified 
should be addressed immediately. 
 
The relevant officers within the Client Affairs Team 
should ensure that the log of deceased clients’ 
properties is completed fully and accurately to track 
the movement of property keys.   
 
 
In addition, Decisions on the deceased client’s asset 

Agreed. 
Scheduled to take place on 27/03/2015 – Team Leader and Client 
Affairs Officer. 
 
 
 
Agreed.  
Immediate / Team Leader and Client Affairs Officer. 
 
 
 
Agreed.  

P
age 68



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      11 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 
should be formally reviewed and signed off by an 
independent senior officer.  Consideration should be 
given to uploading the list of asset with an 
assessment value, indication of disposal method 
and sign off by a manager onto Framework I.   

Immediate / Team Leader and Client Affairs Officer 
 

SoftBox Exceptions Report (Priority 1) 
The Client Affairs Team should investigate and 
rectify the cause for the discrepancies not being 
picked up in the exceptions report and ensure that 
all anomalies are picked up in the exceptions report.   
Although the exceptions found from our sample test 
only related to income discrepancies, further checks 
should be undertaken to ensure the robustness of 
the exceptions report and that both income and 
expenditure discrepancies are fully and accurately 
identified in the exceptions report.   
In addition, the exceptions report should be dated 
and signed off to evidence the review and 
unresolved exceptions should be followed up as a 
matter of urgency.   

Agreed. 
Functionality issue to be investigated. To liaise with IT to address this issue. 
To work with the developer to rectify this issue. 
 
Immediate / Team Leader 

Reconciliation (Priority 1) 
Reconciliation between SoftBox and Appointee & 
Deputy Bank Account and also between ResFunds 
and old bank accounts should be resumed as a 
matter of priority and this should be undertaken on a 
monthly basis.  Any discrepancies should be either 
fully explained or followed up if they cannot be 
explained. 
In addition, reports should be obtained of any direct 
expenditure payments and prepaid card payments 
and these should also be reconciled against SoftBox 

Agreed. 
Since migration to One Oracle, the Team have been unable to complete 
reconciliations. Solution to address this issue has only just come to light. 
 
31st March 2015 / Team Leader 

P
age 69



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      12 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for Implementation 
so that a complete record is maintained of the 
client’s financial transactions.      

  

P
age 70



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      13 

Echo Application Audit 

ECHO is a system used to manage the Public Realm Contract. The system is developed and supported by Twisted Fish 
Ltd and under the Public Realm Contract, Veolia (who has the contract with the Council) are responsible for ensuring that 
the system is fit for purpose and meet the Council’s needs. Veolia will liaise directly with Twisted Fish Ltd to manage 
systems improvements. ECHO, has been installed to replace Contender. 
The Council has a nine year contract (with an option to extend for a further seven years) with Veolia for the provision 
various street cleansing, waste and other public realm service. The annual value of the contract is approximately £15m. 
Under the contract, Veolia provides the following services: 

• Waste & Recycling; 
• Street Cleansing; 
• Burials; 
• Grounds Maintenance (Sports and Parks); and 
• Grounds maintenance (BHP). 

As part of the contract, Waste & Recycling and Street Cleansing services commenced in April 2014 and Grounds 
Maintenance services commenced in September 2014. 
Veolia has designed and implemented a management information system (Municipal Integrated Management System – 
MIMS) to provide access to Veolia users and the client team, client call centre and Authorised Officer with a live, real time 
system to manage the contracted services. 
The MIMS development includes new components incorporating amongst others ECHO Web, ECHO Mobile, ECHO 
OnBoard, ECHO Plan and Business Intelligence Reporting etc. Collectively these components are to deliver a more 
expedient service for managing scheduled and ad-hoc collection, street cleansing, grounds maintenance activities, and a 
more responsive service for managing customer requests and complaints. 
 
Key areas of weakness were as follows:  Failure to review and update the training matrix to confirm that all staff have 
been adequately trained; lack of a clear indication of the current license arrangements in place; use of weak passwords to 
authenticate access to the ECHO system; storing of user passwords in unencrypted format; weak user access 
management processes; absence of a process to report and review critical changes on the system; absence of adequate 
up to date restore and recovery arrangements; and absence of service level key performance targets. 
 
One priority 1, four priority 2 and one priority 3 recommendations were raised as a result of this audit 

 
 

P
age 71



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      14 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 

The following password controls should be enforced on the 
ECHO System: 

• Set passwords to expire every 60 to 90 days; 
• Set minimum password length to eight characters; 
• Set password history to 24 so that passwords cannot be 
recycled in a short period of time; 

• Configure the system to enforce default password 
change; 

• Set user accounts to be locked after three unsuccessful 
access attempts; and 

• Investigate the possibility to periodically report and review 
access violation attempts 

Agreed. 
The system controls will be subject to review by Veolia’s 
technical team so these recommendations are undertaken. 
 
June 2015/ Veolia IT Manager 
 

 
  

P
age 72



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      15 

Limited /Nil Assurance Reports – Schools 

JFS  
Five priority 1, twelve priority 2 and one priority 3 recommendations were raised as a result of this audit.   
Further advice was provided to the School regarding recommendations, which were not agreed or only partly agreed. 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 

Scheme of Delegation  
The Scheme of Delegation should be approved by the full 
Governing Body on an annual basis.  The School should consider 
whether the expenditure authorisation limits as set out in the 
Scheme of Delegation need to be revised.  In addition, the School’s 
policy on virements should also be reflected in the Scheme of 
Delegation.   

Agreed. 
 
The Scheme of Delegation was approved by the Finance and 
Premises Committee (F&PC) in October 2013 and again in 
October 2014.  The latest approved document will be 
presented to the Full Governing Body (FGB) in December 
2014 for approval and will be approved by the FGB annually 
thereafter.  Will be presented to and approved by the FGB 
in December 2014/Chair of the Finance and Premises 
Committee 
 
The School will seek advice from the Internal Auditors and will 
further consider the expenditure authorisation limits in the 
Spring Term F&PCM.  Spring Term 2015/F&PC 
 
 
The School has a policy of no virements.  This policy has now 
been added to our Scheme of Delegation. Will be presented 
to and approved by the FGB in December 2014/Chair of the 
Finance and Premises Committee.  Implemented. 

Receipts for Income  
Pre-numbered receipts should be issued for all income received 

Partly Agreed.  
 

P
age 73



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      16 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 

and copies should be retained to enable effective reconciliations 
and banking processes.   

The bulk of our receipts will now be made via ParentPay, 
which will substantially mitigate this issue.   It is the case that 
receipts are issued in some instances. In other instances, 
before ParentPay was introduced, we would be supplied with 
a spreadsheet detailing the trip and all the students who had 
paid.  This would then form our banking documentation 
enabling effective reconciliation as you have evidenced.  Your 
audit and testing in this area have found no cause for 
concern.  Our own auditors, who are equally robust in their 
systems interrogation, also have found no issues with our 
receipt and banking of income. 
 
Internal Audit Comment 
On the basis of the management response that the majority of 
income will now be collected via Parent Pay and other income 
will either have a receipt issued or supported with a 
spreadsheet with details of the income collected, we accept 
the management response.  However, we reiterate the 
importance of ensuring that receipts are issued for all income 
received which is not received via Parent Pay.  
 
School Comment 
The Student Helpdesk Officer has been asked to issue a 
receipt to students who make a payment outside of the 
ParentPay system.  At present, we are informed that this 
should not be too onerous and will therefore be possible.  
Should it become too onerous we will need to reconsider this 
matter.   
Even though we have never had any issues or concerns in 
relation to the banking of income, we recognise that it is your 
duty to make this recommendation. 

P
age 74



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      17 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 
 
Student Helpdesk Officer/ April 2015 

Bank Signatories  
The Chair of Governors and the Chair of the Finance Committee 
should be removed from the Bank Mandate and it should be 
ensured that no members of the Governing Body are added to the 
bank mandate going forward 

Agreed.  
 
Governors agree with this recommendation.  The School will 
request the removal of the Chair of Governors and the Chair 
of the Finance and Premises committee as signatories to the 
School’s bank mandates. 
 
Spring 2015/ Director of Finance and Administration 

Leadership Pay  
The pay range for the highest paid Deputy Head Teacher should 
be revised so that the top of the range is below the lowest point of 
the Head Teacher’s pay range (L37).  The School should seek 
professional advice regarding the retention incentives which have 
been paid for periods longer than allowed for in the relevant 
versions of the STPCD (prior to September 2013) and whether 
these can be regularised going forward.    

Agreed. 
We acknowledge that this situation has occurred due to an 
oversight.  Given the changes in the framework of the 
STPCD, this is no longer a requirement.  However, Governors 
would like to seek further advice in this regard and with 
regard to our payment of retention incentives in light of the 
new regulations in the STPCD and will reconsider this point in 
the Summer Term. 
 
Internal Audit Comment 

The School should ensure that a formal decision is made 
regarding the retention incentives which have been paid for 
periods longer than allowed for in the relevant versions of the 
STPCD (prior to September 2013).  The discussions and the 
basis of the decision should be clearly recorded in the 
relevant meeting minutes.   
Will be reconsidered in Summer 2015 by Governors of 
the Pay Committee. 
 

P
age 75



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      18 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 

Staff Pay  
There are no provisions within the School Teachers Pay and 
Conditions document for additions to salary made under the 
general heading of “Governors Discretionary Payment”. Certain 
provisions exist within the STPCD to make additional payments to 
teachers, including head teachers. However, these must be made 
on a rational basis and within those specific provisions set out 
within the STPCD.  The School must seek professional advice and 
either cease or regularise the Governor’s discretionary payments 
currently paid to some teaching staff so that they comply with the 
STPCD.   
 
In addition, pay scales for non-teaching posts should be defined 
and the scales should be based on a full job evaluation of each 
post.  The School should seek professional advice to help 
regularise the non-teaching staff’s pay.   

Partly Agreed.  
A Governors’ Discretionary Allowance’ is a form of 
‘Recruitment and Retention’ payment made to teachers.  
Recruitment and Retention payments are permitted within the 
provisions of the STPCD and all of these were the type of 
examples, which you have discussed in your audit report.     
We acknowledge that the evidence from minutes of the Pay 
Committee did not make this clear in the past.  However, in 
the meeting in the Autumn term 2014 this has been explicit, 
as the minutes will show.    
 
The Pay committee considered whether we should introduce 
pay scales for non-teaching posts.   Advice had been sought 
from the School’s HR advisors.  We were informed that pay 
scales were not required as long as posts are evaluated and 
an appropriate salary or salary range applied to that post 
(usually carried out by our HR advisors).  We have been 
informed that we are not obliged to have pay scales.  The 
Governors of the Pay Committee have decided that they do 
not wish to change this at present.  Spring Term 2015/ 
Director of Finance and Administration 
 
Internal Audit Comment 

Advice has been sought from the Council’s HR and they 
indicated that it is ok for the School not to have a formal pay 
structure as long as the School are evaluating posts and 
awarding salaries fairly and in a non-discriminatory way.  
The second part of the recommendation in respect of non-
teaching staff was raised because evidence of a full job 
evaluation of non-teaching staff and a link to the pay 

P
age 76



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      19 

Recommendation Management Response / Responsibility / Deadline for 
Implementation 
range/salary could not be provided at the time of the audit. 
School Comment 
In future we will retain supporting documentation for job 
evaluations of non-teaching staff posts as evidence of 
transparency.  With immediate effect.  Head 
teacher/Director of Finance and Administration 

P
age 77



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      20 

Non Assurance Work 
 
Troubled Families Grant 
Claim Certification 

Certification of January 2015 Grant Claims 
 
Payment by Results Claim – 158 families certified for claim 
 
This is a grant, which the Head of the Audit & Investigations Team is required to certify the grant 
claims. This funding is for the DCLG’s Troubled Families programme, which is aimed at reducing the 
cost of problem families. The government is providing funding to cover up to 40% of the cost of 
interventions for these families. This will be paid primarily on a payment by results basis. The DCLG 
will make available up to £4,000 for each troubled family that is eligible for the payment-by-results 
scheme. A proportion of this is paid upfront as an “attachment fee” for the number of families that the 
local authority starts working with, and the rest will be paid following positive outcomes with these 
families. 

 

 
  

P
age 78



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      21 

Follow-Up of 
Previously Raised 
Recommendations 

As part of our rolling programme, all recommendations are being followed-up with management, as and 
when the deadlines for implementation pass. This work is of high importance given that the Council’s risk 
exposure remains unchanged if management fail to implement the recommendations raised in respect of 
areas of control weakness. A key element of the Audit Committee’s role is to monitor the extent to which 
recommendations are implemented as agreed and within a reasonable timescale, with particular focus 
applied to any priority 1 recommendations. 
The current level of implementation is as per the chart on the following page. Of the recommendations 
followed-up, 89% had been either fully or partly implemented, or are no longer applicable due to 
changes in the scope of operations. Of the priority 1 recommendations, 80% had either been fully or 
partly implemented whilst 20% had not.  

 
Implementation of Recommendations 

 

 
 
  

Implemented

Partly Implemented

Not Implemented

No Longer Applicable

P
age 79



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      22 

Follow-Up of Previously Raised Recommendations 
The table below provides a summary of the findings from the follow-up work completed since the last meeting, excluding any BHP 
recommendations. 
Our approach is explained within the Executive Summary. Recommendations are classified as either Implemented (I); Partly 
Implemented (PI); Not Implemented (NI); or in some cases no longer applicable (N/A), for example if there has been a change in 
the systems used.  
For any recommendations found to have only been partly implemented or not implemented at all, further actions have been raised 
with management. As such, we have included all recommendations followed-up to date, including Draft Follow-Up Reports, as well 
as those that have been finalised. Where the reports have been finalised, the further actions have been agreed with management, 
including revised deadlines and responsible officers. For those at Draft stage, we are awaiting responses from management. All 
agreed further actions will be added to our rolling follow-up programme as explained in the Executive Summary to this report.  
The table includes a column to highlight any priority 1 recommendations, which were found not to have been fully implemented. 
Please note that we have not replicated the full recommendation, only the general issue to which they relate. 

Audit Title  Priority 1  Priority 2  Priority 3  Total  Priority 1 Recommendations not 
implemented 

I PI NI I PI NI I PI NI I PI NI N/A 

Partnership Management    1   1        1 1     
Key Policy & Legislative 
Changes (Welfare Reforms 
etc.)  

      1        1     

Domestic Violence  1    3    1    5      

Insurance  2 5 2  4    1    7 5 2   
Reinstatement Valuation of Properties & 
Verification Policy. 

Building Control  2  1  12  1      14  2    
Resilience of Outlook 
Exchange & Email 
Archiving  

     5     2   7      

Bank Line       2    1 1   2 1 1    
PC & Laptop Controls       2        2      
Remote Working           1    1      
Torah Temimah  6 7 3  4 3       10 10 3    
Sale of Council Properties      3 3 1      3 3 1    

P
age 80



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      23 

Audit Title  Priority 1  Priority 2  Priority 3  Total  Priority 1 Recommendations not 
implemented 

I PI NI I PI NI I PI NI I PI NI N/A 

  11 13 6  36 7 2  4 3 0  52 20 9    

P
age 81



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      24 

Appendix A – Definitions 
 

Audit Opinions 
We have four categories by which we classify internal audit assurance over the processes we examine, and these are defined as 
follows: 

 Full There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the client’s objectives. 
The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 

  Substantial While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are weaknesses, which put some of the 
client’s objectives at risk. 
There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the control processes may put some of the 
client’s objectives at risk. 

  
Limited Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put the client’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the client’s objectives at risk. 

  
None Control processes are generally weak leaving the processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic control processes leaves the processes/systems open to error or 
abuse. 

The assurance grading provided are not comparable with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) 
issued by the International Audit and Assurance Standards Board and as such the grading of ‘Full Assurance’ does not imply that 
there are no risks to the stated objectives. 

 
Direction of Travel 
The Direction of Travel assessment provides a comparison between the current assurance opinion and that of any previous internal 
audit for which the scope and objectives of the work were the same.  

 Improved since the last audit visit. Position of the arrow indicates previous status. 

 Deteriorated since the last audit visit. Position of the arrow indicates previous status. 

 Unchanged since the last audit report.  

No arrow Not previously visited by Internal Audit. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

    

    

P
age 82



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      25 

Recommendation Priorities 
 
In order to assist management in using our internal audit reports, we categorise our recommendations according to their level of 
priority as follows: 
 
Priority 1 Major issues for the attention of senior management and the Audit Committee. 

Priority 2 Important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 

Priority 3 Minor issues resolved on site with local management. 

P
age 83



 

Internal Audit – 4th Progress Report 2014/15 – London Borough of Brent – March 2015      26 

Appendix B – Audit Team and Contact Details 
 

London Borough of Brent Contact Details 

Simon Lane – Head of Audit & Investigations � simon.lane@brent.gov.uk  

℡ 020 8937 1260 

� aina.uduehi@brent.gov.uk  

℡ 020 8937 1495 

Aina Uduehi – Audit Manager 

 

 
 

Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited  Contact Details 

Mark Towler – Director  � rob.hacking@brent.gov.uk 

℡ 020 8937 1491 

 
Rob Hacking– Assistant Audit Manager 

Harish Shah – Computer Audit Sector Manager  

 

 
 

P
age 84



 

 

Audit Committee 
24 March 2015 

Report from the Chief Finance 
Officer  

For Information 
Wards  affected: All 

Corporate Risk Register 

 

1. Summary 

1.1 This report presents the council’s current Corporate Risk Register.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1 Audit Committee to review and note the contents of the Council’s updated Corporate 
Risk Register.  

3. Detail 

3.1 The risk register is attached at appendix 1. This sets out the council’s corporate and 
key operational risks. Only those operational risks with a net score of 12 or more are 
reported to CMT. There are further risks contained within the departmental registers 
which can be viewed via the infostore system.  

3.2 Strategic Directors are required to maintain an operational risk register and review 
this periodically with their Departmental Management Teams. The register is now 
held on Infostore and Directors are required to ensure their registers are up to date 
in accordance with the Audit Committee reporting cycle. The key dates are: 10th 
March, 10th June, 10th September and 10th December 2015.  

3.3 The Audit Committee last reviewed the register at its meeting on 7th January 2015. 
Corporate risks have remained relatively static with the financial challenge across 
the authority and specifically within Adult Social Care, resulting from demographic 
pressures, being identified as corporate risks.  

3.4 There needs to be some work done to align risks with the new senior management 
structure, particularly relating to those which will now appear within the Chief 

Agenda Item 8

Page 85



 

Operating Officer’s areas of responsibility. 
 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2011 section 4(1) require the council 

to “ensure that the financial management of the body is adequate and effective and 
that the body has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 

exercise of that body’s functions and which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk.”  

4.2 Further section 5 (1) (4) (i) requires that the Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services determines accounting control systems which include adequate measures 
to ensure that risk is appropriately managed.  

5. Financial Implications 

5.1 None 

6. Diversity Implications 

6.1 None 

7. Contact Officer Details 
 
Simon Lane, Head of Audit & Investigations, 1st floor, Brent Civic Centre 

Telephone – 020 8937 1260 

 

 

 

 Conrad Hall 
 Chief Finance Officer 

Page 86



Corporate Risks

ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

ASS4

Budget / Demand - by 
2020 high level 
figures estimated that 
demand will increase 
budgetary 
requirements 26% 
based on projected 
movements in 
demographics and 
populations with 
people living longer. 

Failure to 
deliver a more 
efficient cost 
effective 
service will 
result in 
overspending 
of budgets. 6 5 30

Demand levels are continuously 
monitored and regular modelling and 
forecasting will help to keep a close 
watch on the situation. There is 
monthly monitoring, we are likely to 
deliver on budget this year, and we 
have a significant savings plan in place 
which the Change and improvement 
Board oversees

Financial 
pressures are 
regularly 
reported and 
monitored 
through 
Strategic 
Finance Group 
and High Level 
Monitoring 
panel. 5 3 15

Changes to the way we deliver 
services and demand 
management strategies need to 
be put in place to protect the 
Council's Financial position.  
Routine monitoring and reporting 
arrangements are in place.  
Ongoing work is required to look 
at how to deliver the service 
differently for the department to 
be able to deal with projected 
increases in demand. 01/04/2014 DMT - ASC

P
age 87



ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

CF1

Failure to meet 
demand for school 
places

Council unable 
to discharge 
statutory duty 
to provide 
education.  
Reputation 
damage, legal 
challenge, 
increased 
health and 
safety risks 6 6 36

New School Place PLanning Strategy 
approved October 2014.  Lobbying 
Central Govt for additional funding; 
funding for basic need secured from 
central govt.  to provide additional 
school places; creative use made of 
Free Schools programme; use of Fair 
Access Protocol to place pupils above 
published numbers; Temporary 
expansions and Projects established 
to address shortfall; Regular reports 
to CMT& Executive to agree 
prioritisation of use of capital 
funding; Strategy Board meets on a 
regular basis ; Standing Agenda Item 
in Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings.

Regular 
monitoring by 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Committee;  
CMT & 
Executive. 6 4 24

Continued lobbying and work with 
London Councils and Schools. On-going

Operational 
Director Early 
Help and 
Education 
Division

P
age 88



ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

CF3 

Increase in  demand 
for social care 
services resulting 
from welfare 
reforms(more 
families with no 
recourse to public 
funds, Children Act, 
more children looked 
after) 

Increase in 
number of 
looked after 
children or 
greater 
demand for 
services for 
vulnerable 
children and 
young people. 
Pressures 
translate into 
increased 
financial 
pressures. 5 6 30

Improved budgetary controls; robust 
budget monitoring; improved 
commissioning arrangement. Children 
being are being supported to remain 
at home where safe.  Services will be 
re-prioritised to meet the needs of 
the most vulnerable. Improved 
commissioning arrangements 
including cross borough work with 
WLA.Early help services are targeting 
vulnerable and disadvantaged 
families and showing success in 
preventing escalation of problems.

Management 
information 
reports track 
activity and 
identify trends, 
to which 
management 
are able to 
respond 4 5 20

NRPF and homelessness pressures 
being monitored.d ongoing

Operational 
Director, 
Children Social 
Care

P
age 89



ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

CMT

Savings to all  council 
budgets, estimated at 
between 20-40%, will 
affect all teams  and 
will have an impact 
on strategic and 
operational impact on 
capacity to deliver.

The necessity 
to deliver 
savings of  
54million over 
the  2015/16 
and 2016/2017 
financial years 
from Council 
budgets will 
inevitably 
impact on 
service 
delivery 
continuity. 6 6 36

Budget monitoring system to identify 
issues and prioritise mitigatng actions
CMT and DMTs focused on high risk 
proposals to identify issues
One Council project management 
discipline in place to ensure 
successful delivery

Governance 
system 
reviewed 
annually to 
ensure meeting 
challenges
External audit 
opinion
Service 
inspections as 
appropriate 5 5 25

Review of Q1 financial and 
performance information to re 
assess approach as necessary 31 July 2015

Chief Finance 
Officer

P
age 90



ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

R&G5

Increase in demand 
from homeless 
households due to 
welfare reform and 
overheated Private 
Rented Sector market 
in London

Council unable 
to manage 
budget within 
agreed 
limits.Major 
impact on 
children within 
homeless 
families 6 6 36

Delivery of the revised 
Accommodation StrategyEffective use 
of DHP budget and detailed budget 
monitoring arrangements in 
placeContinue to focus resources on 
prevention of homelessness wherever 
possibleReduction in the use of high 
cost temporary accommodation and 
introduction of new more cost 
effective contracts to provide 
temporary 
accommodationMonitoring of 
temporary accommodation 
placementsIntervention of Welfare 
Reform team to work with most 
affected cases in PRS

Regular 
Monitoring 5 5 25 On going monitoring On-going

Head of Housing 
Needs

P
age 91



ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Controls Assurance

N
e
t
 
i

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
s
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline Responsible

S5

The Council fails to 
comply with 
legal/statutory 
obligations including 
consultation and 
equality duty in 
implementing policy 
changes

Increased 
disatisfaction 
with council, 
increase in 
number of 
legal 
challenges and 
Judicial 
Reviews 
resulting in 
cost of 
defence and 
delay 6 4 24

Area Consultative Forums; Brent 
Citizens Panel; User Consultative 
Forums; Equalities issues reported to 
CMT on a quarterly basis. Regular 
monitoring by CMT. Equalities 
Statement 

Consultation 
Board. 6 3 18

Contentious issues flagged up 
through surgery system. New 
guidance on Equalities to be 
issued. Equalities guidance due 
shortly. Dec-14

Chief Legal 
Officer

P
age 92



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Adult Social 
Care ASS1

Failure to safeguard vulnerable persons (older 
persons; persons with physical & learning 
disabilities; mental health, transitional young 
people and other vulnerable adults) leading 
and resulting in resulting in abuse, death or 
injury of vulnerable persons (both in terms of 
safety and financial abuse) 

Abuse, Death or injury of 
vulnerable persons. Reputational 
damage to Council. 6 3 18

Safeguarding of Adults Teams deal with safeguarding adults issues.  
Safer Recruitment; training; Multi - Agency Policies and Procedures 
for Adults;  ASC Transformation Programme; Reablement. 
Appointeeships/Deputyship arrangements in place after client needs 
have been assessed. Good links with  Children & Families and Legal to 
ensure robust adherence to safeguarding children's policies and 
procedures. 

Care Quality 
Commission 
Inspections; Carers 
Survey; Internal Audit; 
Office of Protection. 
Children's Service, 
Ofsted, Internal Audit 6 2 12

On-going training for staff in relation to 
safeguarding and constant review of 
procedures and policies On-going

Interim Head of 
Reablement and 
Safeguarding

Adult Social 
Care ASS2

Fraud; misappropriation and financial 
mismanagement of personalised budgets and 
direct payments by clients leading to the 
misappropriation of council funds and resulting 
in overspending budgets

Statutory obligation to provide 
clients with services even where 
funds have been misused.  
Budgetary issues.  6 3 18

Robust policies and procedures; In house Direct Payments Team; 
Prepaid cards and managed accounts; procedures in place for 
financial monitoring. Robust approach to Fraud in the form of an Anti-
fraud Framework; Whistleblowing . Internal Audit 6 2 12

Improved training for new staff as they join 
the council.  Fraud / Safeguarding on-going 
training to be provided to all current staff.  A 
cross directorate working group has been set 
up to look at ways of identifying financial 
abuse. None

Director Adult 
Social Care Head 
of Direct 
Services

Adult Social 
Care ASS3

Failure to engage with key partners across the  
public sector and other external organisations 
leading to not maximising collaborative 
working opportunities and cost reductions 
resulting in inefficiencies from service overlaps 
and duplications. 

Inefficiencies from service 
overlaps due to duplication; gaps 
in service provision.    Additional 
savings of £2.2m would need to 
be found by the Department if fail 
to integrate with Health.  Pressure 
on resources and potential for 
additional cuts in staff and 
services. 6 6 36

PID have been completed and a business case is currently being 
developed.  The Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board oversees 
integration.  On-going engagement with external key partners to 
discuss new ways of working

Shadow Health & 
Wellbeing Board, 6 3 18

Continued discussions with key partners and 
pilot integrated services being developed and 
trailed 01/10/2014

Director  Adult 
Social Services

Adult Social 
Care ASS4

Budget / Demand - by 2020 high level figures 
estimated that demand will increase budgetary 
requirements 26% based on projected 
movements in demographics and populations 
with people living longer

Failure to deliver a more efficient 
cost effect service will result in 
overspending budgets 6 5 30

Demand levels are continuously monitored and regular modelling and 
forecasting will help to keep a close watch on the situation.  

Financial pressures 
are regularly reported 
and monitored 
through Strategic 
Finance Group and 
High Level Monitoring 
panel. 5 3 15

Changes in ways we deliver services and 
demand management strategies need to be 
put into place to protect the council's financial 
position.  Routine monitoring and reporting 
arrangements are in place On-going work is 
required to look at how to deliver the service 
differently to be able for the department to be 
able to deal with the projected increase in 
demand. Ongoing DMT

P
age 93



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Adult Social 
Care ASS6

Not being able to meet the demand of carers 
as a result of the implementation of the Care 
and Support Act.  Failure to comply with the 
Care & Support Act 2014 and provide support 
to carers.

Reputational risk and adverse 
publicity fopr faiiling to support 
carers.  Budget pressures as more 
resources required to comply and 
provide support to carers.  
Increase in demand for 
assessments and the budget 
pressures due to carers being 
eligible to receive direct 
payments. 6 5 30

Carers Strategy agreed.  Will help to identify carers and their needs 
and begin to develop arrangements to support their needs.  Sponsor 
identified for project and work streans due to commence.  Recent 
audit of carers and in annual accounts highlighted weaknesses which 
are the the process of being addressed.  

Strategy is being 
overseen by Director 
of ASS.  Project 
Sponsor is working on 
3 workstreams to 
improve outcome for 
carers.  Regular 
reports to Change & 
Improvement 
Programe Board. 5 4 20

To try to establish potential volume of carers 
who may require services and begin to predict 
cost and resource implecation and develop 
plans for the future 30/12/2014

Head of Direct 
Services

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE CC1

Cuts to ACE dept budgets, estimated at 
between 20-40%, will affect all corporate 
teams  and will have a strategic and 
operational impact on capacity to deliver.

The necessity to deliver savings of 
up to 40% from the ACE 
department will inevitably impact 
on service delivery meaning that 
planned / proactive corporate 
services and priority behaviour 
change programmes may not be 
delivered. The council's 
reputation may also suffer due to 
lack of proactive strategy and 
press work and no resources to 
support crisis communications. 4 6 24

Close monitoring of departmental and team budgets for 
over/underspend.

Close monitoring of overal council savings required and efficiency 
savings forthcomings.

1. Cabinet 2. CMT 3. 
Corporate Finance 2 6 12

All ACE Heads of service will be developing 
contingency plans for revised service plans 
that incorporate varying levels of cuts to 
budgets. Revised models of delivery will 
specify what services/posts will be 
compromised and how statutory services will 
be maintained. March-15

Chief Operating 
Officer

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE CP5

Failure to achieve deadline for resolving stage 
1 and stage 2 corporate complaints.

failure to deliver customer 
standard for complaints response 
deadlines. Reputational impact of 
poor customer service and 
potential compensation payments 
for delay. 6 4 24

1. Close monitoring of deadlines. 
2. Alert reminders sent to departments. 
3. Training provided to managers to improve stage 1 complaints 
resolution. 
4. Operational Director sign off of stage 1 complaints.  
5. Improvements to the FOI case monitoring system and training 
provided. 4 3 12

Review of service allocation and 
responsibilities to be undertaken March 2015

Corporate 
Complaints 
Manager

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE OC1

OC Programme Savings 2015/16 and 
beyondThere is a risk that the delay in 
identifying new OC projects,  will limit that 
amount of savings that can be delivered in 
2015/16 through the OC Programme.

There could be insufficient lead-
int time to agree, scope and put 
new projects into delivery before 
April 2015 to be able to realise 
significant savings in 2015/16. 6 4 24

1. It has been agreed that the departmental budget saving process 
managed by Corporate Finance will be the main mechanism for 
identifying new large or cross-cutting OC projects.  
2. Cabinet is expecteed to approve 2015/16  departemental budget 
proposals by late Autumn 2014.
3. Potential 2015/16  budget savings from new OC Projects will need 
to be realistic given the delay in idenfication and validated by 
Corporate Finance.

1. Cabinet
2. CMT
3. Corporate Finance 3 4 12

1. Programme Board to monitor progress with 
confirming departmental budget savings and 
the number of new OC projects identified March 2015 PMO Manager

P
age 94



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE OC2

OC Project Delivery ResourcesThere is a risk a 
large number of new OC projects will be 
identified through departmental budget 
savings process and there will be insufficient 
internal project management resource to 
manage these new projects.

1. External consultants may have 
be to engaged to project manage 
some of the new OC projects.  
This may cause some reputational 
difficulties as we have made a 
tactical choice to only use 
external consultants for specialist 
project work and not general 
project management.2. Some of 
the projects may have to be de-
prioritised until additional 
capacity is created in the 
PMO/project delivery team.  This 
could delay improvements and 
budget savings being delivered as 
planned. 4 4 16

1. Programme Board to monitor progress with confirming 
departmental budget savings and the number of new OC projects 
identified.
2. PMO to assess additonal project management resources (after 
existing team is fully allocated.
3.  Formal request to CMT to recruit additional project managers 
(permanent, fixed term or secondments)

1. CMT
2. Programme Board 3 4 12

1. PMO to continually assess current project 
management capacity with new OC projects 
coming into the Programme.

2. Resources to be matchedas part of One 
Council as projects are agreed with CMT and 
Directors. March 2015 PMO Manager

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE PE1

Lack of joined up working between Council and 
key partners as a result of an ineffective 
Partners for Brent.

Poor engagement between 
partners to deliver imporvments 
across the Borough. Initiatives 
and enaggement tools are 
duplicated leading to a watse in 
valuable resources. 4 5 20

Developing a refreshed approach to taking forward Partners for Brent 
that is in line with the development of the new Borough Plan. 
Refreshed approach will include streamlined, fit for purpose 
structure. Performance reports 4 3 12

New structure will be reviewed after 6 months 
to ensure it is meeting its aims. June 2015

Head of 
Partnerships 
and Engagament

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE PH3

Failure to identify costed cross departmental 
priorities for public health action.

Underspend of public health 
grant while Council seeking to 
identify significant savings in 
other budgets. 4 5 20

Public Health Delivery Board agreement of process to develop 
proposals. DPH dialogue with DMTs / SLTs. PHDB finance reports. 3 5 15 Escalation to CMT October 2015

Director of 
Public Health

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive ACE PH4

Contracts to transfer to the local authority for 
health visiting and FNP in October 2015 are not 
fit for purpose. Adjustment to local authority 
public health grant is insufficient to cover cost 
of commissioning the service.

Mandated health visiting service 
not available to children and 
families in Brent. 5 4 20 5 4 20

Work with NHSE London to improve the 
quality of finanical information submitted by 
the provider. Work with NHSE London to 
ensure that 2015/16 health visiting contract is 
fit for transfer to Brent Council in October 
2015. October 2015

Director of 
Public Health

Children 
and Young 
People CF1 Failure to meet demand for school places

Council unable to discharge 
statutory duty to provide 
education.  Reputation damage, 
legal challenge, increased health 
and safety risks 6 6 36

New School Place PLanning Strategy approved October 2014.  
Lobbying Central Govt for additional funding; funding for basic need 
secured from central govt.  to provide additional school places; 
creative use made of Free Schools programme; use of Fair Access 
Protocol to place pupils above published numbers; Temporary 
expansions and Projects established to address shortfall; Regular 
reports to CMT& Executive to agree prioritisation of use of capital 
funding; Strategy Board meets on a regular basis ; Standing Agenda 
Item in Overview & Scrutiny Committee Meetings.

Regular monitoring by 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee;  CMT & 
Executive. 6 4 24

Continued lobbying and work with London 
Councils and Schools. On-going

Operational 
Director Early 
Help and 
Education 
Division

P
age 95



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Children 
and Young 
People CF2

Vulnerable children not adequately 
safeguarded. 

Abuse, Death or injury of 
vulnerable persons. Reputational 
damage to Council. 6 4 24

Safeguarding of Children Teams deal with child protection and 
safeguarding issues; Brent Local Safeguarding Children's Board; Safer 
Recruitment & Training; Whistleblowing; publicity; raising of 
awareness at schools & community in general;  Children & Young 
People Plans; Child Protection Arrangements;  Strong partnership 
working with relevant agencies; High level monitoring meetings with 
Chief Executive; Corporate Parenting Committee; Auditing 
arrangements; Range of monitoring arrangements to track progress; 
Overview & Scrutiny; Performance Information (quarterly 
scorecards); Timely reviews of Looked After Children; 

Ofsted Inspection 
deemed that children 
were safe. Internal 
Service User Surveys; 
Internal Audit. 6 2 12

Continuous Monitoring & Development; 
Safeguarding & Looked After Children 
Inspection Action Plan; Continued 
collaboration with relevant agencies. On-going

Operational 
Director, 
Children Social 
Care

Children 
and Young 
People CF3 

Increase in  demand for social care services 
resulting from welfare reforms(more families 
with no recourse to public funds, Children Act, 
more children looked after) 

Increase in number of looked 
after children or greater demand 
for services for vulnerable 
children and young people. 
Pressures translate into increased 
financial pressures. 5 6 30

Improved budgetary controls; robust budget monitoring; improved 
commissioning arrangement. Children being are being supported to 
remain at home where safe.  Services will be re-prioritised to meet 
the needs of the most vulnerable. Improved commissioning 
arrangements including cross borough work with WLA.Early help 
services are targeting vulnerable and disadvantaged families and 
showing success in preventing escalation of problems.

Management 
information reports 
track activity and 
identify trends, to 
which management 
are able to respond 4 5 20

NRPF and homelessness pressures being 
monitored.d ongoing

Operational 
Director, 
Children Social 
Care

Children 
and Young 
People CF5

Disproportionate reduction to Council's 
general fund arising from academy 
conversions.

Impact on Council's ability to 
improve attainment of children & 
young people. 6 5 30

Participated in joint action with several other local authorities to 
challenge General Fund top slicing by Central government.  Work 
underway to remodel services to schools to ensure fulfilment of 
statutory duties within smaller financial envelope.  Continue to take 
robust approach to leasing issues to minimise risk from transfer of 
liabilities on academisation. 6 4 24

Modelling of schools budgets based on 
proposed new funding formula and continuing 
to make 'pessimistic' assumptions about an 
increased number of academies.   Improving 
approach to negotiating transfers Ongoing

Operational 
Director Early 
Help and 
Education 
Division

Children 
and Young 
People CF7

Major fraud or financial mismanagement in 
schools.

Reputational damage; removal of 
financial delegation; increase 
resources required from LA to 
support school. 6 4 24

There is a rolling-programme of school audits in place which is 
thorough and robust. Where significant financial issues and risks are 
identified then the Council has and will continue to take robust 
action. When issues are identified all schools are informed of major 
learning points and are offered support to put in place an action plan 
to address any major issues. 6 3 18

Although the audit function is robust - work is 
being undertaken to ensure that measures are 
being implemented within schools to ensure 
financial issues and risks are being addressed.  
Several cases have been forwarded to the 
internal fraud team to investigate any 
suspicions or misaccounting or fraudulant 
behavour and this is sending a strong message 
out to all schools. Ongoing

Operational 
Director Early 
Help and 
Education 
Division

P
age 96



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN1

Effects of Climate Change not adequately 
planned for.  Failure to understand and plan to 
mitigate the impact of and adapt to climate 
change.  

Negative impact on health & 
wellbeing of residents.  Increase 
in energy costs and fees paid to 
the Environment Agency on 
Carbon Reduction Commitment 
Regulations.  
Environmentaltargets not met.  
and reputational risks for being at 
the bottom of the league table.  
Increase expenditure to make 
further adaptations and other 
levies. 6 3 18

Climate Change Strategy & Action Plan; Travel Plans; Recycling 
Schemes; Climate Change Pledge; Waste Strategy, Carbon 
Management Programme and the Council's Green Charter.  

Internal Audit - CRC 
Readiness Report.  
Audit by Environment 
Agency.  Progress on 
Green Charter is 
reported to members 6 2 12 On-going

Interim 
Operational 
Director 
Neighbourhoods

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN2

Failure to cope with severe weather events, 
which are themselves becoming more likely 
over time.  

Disruption to residents and 
possible homelessness.  Damage 
to properties.  Potential 
uninsurability of risks within 
borough. 5 3 15

Emergency and Business Continuity Plans; Flood Risk Management 
Plans

Emergency Planning & 
Business Continuity; 
Partnership working 
with Environment 
Agency 5 3 15 On-going

Head of 
Community 
Safety and 
Emergency 
Planning

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN3

Major or large scale incident (accident; natural 
hazard; riot, terrorism) business interruption 
affecting Council's resources and its ability to 
deliver critical services. Risk to safety of staff / 
Loss of staff.

Service delivery disruption and 
impact on the Council's ability to 
deliver critical 
services.Reputational damage to 
the borough should a perpetrator 
of terrorism be living, or 
radicalized within Brent 6 4 24

Community Resilience; Civil Contingencies Register; Emergency 
Planning; ongoing preventative work with the Home Officer        

Emergency Planning & 
Business Continuity 5 3 15

Regular review and assessment of  robustness 
of plans. On-going

Head of 
Community 
Safety and 
Emergency 
Planning

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN4

 Financial/ bankruptcy of major service 
provider/contractor  i.e. waste, street 
cleansing, trees, parking, leisure services

Catastrophic failure in service 
delivery/disruption.  Council 
unable to fulfil its statutory 
duties.  Reputational damage and 
financial implications. 6 3 18

Robust Tendering & Contracting procedures with effective contract 
clauses when negotiating Contracts.  The requirement for financial 
guarantee / bond / parent company guarantee. Effective Contract 
Management procedures & arrangements ; regular meetings with 
contractor; performance monitoring; action plans to address 
underperformance

Auditor's Reports; 
Internal Audit 
Reports; Performance 
Reports; Performance 
information. 6 2 12 On-going

Operational 
Director and 
Interim 
Operational 
Director 
Neighbourhoods

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN5

Risk to personal safety of officers  undertaking 
enforcement action or during the course of 
their duties.   

Serious harm to employees 
resulting in legal action against 
the Council ; reputational 
damage. 5 3 15

Training in personal safety for employees; risk assessment; safe 
working practices; lone worker guidance. 

Audit of Training data, 
check by HOS on risk 
assessments 4 3 12 On-going

Operational 
Director and 
Interim 
Operational 
Director 
Neighbourhoods

P
age 97



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Environmen
t and 
Neighbourh
ood EN7

Failure of the Public Realm contract  .  The 
contract  includes universal services such as 
refuse collections, streets cleansing, grounds 
maintenance and cemeteries .  The contract 
commenced in April 2014, for refuse 
collection, street cleansing and related 
activities and in September 2014 for grounds 
maintenance and burials including BHP, when 
staff were transferred to Veolia.

Failure to deliver services. 
Negative impact on health & 
wellbeing of residents as a result 
of  refuse not collected , dirty 
streets and open space and delays 
in burials.  Environmental , 
regulations and  reputational 
risks.  5 3 15

Contract awarded to Veolia at October 2013 Executive; mobilisation 
plan underway with contractor

Project Board to 
review progress 4 3 12 Sep-14

Interim 
Operational 
Director 
Neighbourhoods

Finance and 
IT CS/I/O/1

Loss of Significant Amount of Client Personal 
Data caused by ITU Operational activity

Reputation loss through the 
association of the Brent Council 
name with disruptable  and 
unethical activities, potential law 
suites and potential fine from the 
Information Commissioner. 6 3 18

High level of security in operations, on-going in house user training, 
continued vigilance, continuous monitoring a reporting. Technical 
controls are in place to support.

ITU Operational 
Management 6 2 12

Introduction of new Security Regime as part of 
the NBCC fit out. Continued attention to detail 
in security provision. Ongoing

Operational 
Director IT

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 01

Lack of external investment in regeneration of 
the borough

Reduced income receipts from 
business rates; reduction in 
housing supply within the 
borough. Increase in levels of 
poverty, unemployment and 
increased levels of deprivation 
within the borough.  6 6 36

De-risking  by assisting with planning permissions etc. on behalf of 
developers; Maintaining dialogue with investors / developers. 
Reviewing other sources of capital finance. 

Regular economic 
monitoring.  Regular 
market contact. 5 5 25

Ongoing economic monitoring and market 
contact On going

Operational 
Director 
Planning & 
Regeneration

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 02

Inability to deliver new affordable housing in 
accordance with housing strategy targets

Risk to council's reputation due to 
residents having to wait longer to 
be rehoused.          Increased 
temporary accommodation levels 
and costs and increased unmet 
housing needMay affect councils 
ability to generate new homes 
bonus 4 6 24

Performance monitored quarterly at corporate levelNew Housing 
Partnerships service area and Housing Investment Board established 
to maximise housing investment planning and resources and promote 
direct and partnership affordable housing development.      Regular 
liaison with GLA over grant-funding opportunities including Housing 
Zone programmeClear planning policy Regular Monitoring 4 4 16

Production of Housing Investment Plan. 
Identification of new-build sites on HRA land 
and on corporate sites. Commissioning further 
infill and other direct development 
opportunities and building BHP capacity. 
Progressing Housing Zone applications to 
achieve successful designation, and 
subsequent implementation to accelerate 
affordable housing supply On going

Head of Housing 
Partnerships

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 03

Inability to deliver enough school capacity 
through the Schools Capital Programme

Council in breach of its statutory 
duty. Increasing numbers of 
children having to be educated 
out of Borough 5 6 30

Work with Children & Families Dept. to identify alternative education 
solutionsScope to identify future funding/grant funding options

Schools Expansion 
Policy agreed by 
Executive 4 5 20 On going

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 04

Inability to meet government set Carbon & 
Efficiency savings targets with funding/fines 
attached

Council having a reduced services 
budget 5 6 30

Ensure works with Carbon Management Group ensuring data is 
captured and is of good quality, but that other Departments co-
operate, share skills an k knowledge and communicate effectively Regular Monitoring 4 3 12 On going Energy Manager

P
age 98



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 05

Increase in demand from homeless households 
due to welfare reform and overheated Private 
Rented Sector market in London

Council unable to manage budget 
within agreed limits.Major impact 
on children within homeless 
families 6 6 36

Delivery of the revised Accommodation StrategyEffective use of DHP 
budget and detailed budget monitoring arrangements in 
placeContinue to focus resources on prevention of homelessness 
wherever possibleReduction in the use of high cost temporary 
accommodation and introduction of new more cost effective 
contracts to provide temporary accommodationMonitoring of 
temporary accommodation placementsIntervention of Welfare 
Reform team to work with most affected cases in PRS Regular Monitoring 5 5 25 On going monitoring On-going

Head of Housing 
Needs

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 07

Sudbury School Academy ConversionSchool is 
seeking redress from the Council with regard 
to the value engineering undertaken to reduce 
the cost overruns on the building contract

Council is faced with a claim of up 
to £1.8m ( the amount the school 
contributed to the project). This 
will impact on the Capital 
Programme 6 3 18

This is a  post build completion matter and is  being handled by the 
Contracts (Legal) Team, Legal and Procurement 6 2 12

Gary Howell, Senior Commercial Litigation 
Officer,  is leading on issue for Council On going

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 08

Inability to deliver social housing units in line 
with specified targtes

Impacts upon families in TA and 
on housing waiting lists 6 3 18 Regular Monitoring 6 2 12

Performance monitored quarterly at corporate 
levelClear planning policyCloser links between 
Housing and Major Projects staff through 
restructureSuccessful delivery of major 
residential developments On-going

Head of Housing 
Partnerships

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 09

Temporary Accomodation demand increases as 
a result of welfare reforms and lack of access 
to affordable private rented properties.

Demand led pressures will impact 
on the temporary accomodations 
budgetUnable to procure 
sufficient properties to meet 
demand from Homeless 
HouseholdsAdverse Impact on 
Temporary Accommodation 
Budget 6 5 30

TA Reform Plan developed including project workstreams to increase 
homeless preventions and maximise private rented discharge. TA 
Reform Project board and management arrangements in place. 
Monthly supply & demand and financial forecasting.   Welfare Reform 
team workplan to resolve OBC cases and prevent homelessness in PRS 
through use of DHPs. Regular monitoring 6 3 18

Implementation of TA Reform Plan. 
Developing short and longer-term alternatives 
to high-cost Bed & Breakfast accommodation 
through interim use of corporate assets and 
development of new homeless hostel 
provision. Launch of BHP lettings agency in 
2015 and market TA arrangements to 
landlords through licensing scheme. On going

Head of Housing 
Needs

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 10

Politicalo pressure from local community/ 
groups affect abiility to deliver the  new 
Willesden Green Cultural Centre to budget and 
time

Centre not delivered on time will 
impact on ability to open 
library/customer services centre 
in south of borough 6 4 24

Clear lines of communication between R&MP teams, politicians and 
communityWell planned and executed consultation Regular monitoring 5 3 15 Effective PR management On going

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 11 Community Access project is not successful 

Financial savings are not achieved 
and residents' experience 
worsens as pressure on services is 
not mitigated sufficiently by new 
delivery models 6 4 24

A - Regular monitoring of ProjectB - Strong Project management in 
place
 Funding for project resource is being sought from OC board to 
accelerate progress in undertaking thematic reviews
Engagement programme with services planned to ensure buy in

1 - PMO Board and 
Brent Community 
Access Board 5 3 15 On going monitoring On going

Operational 
Director, Brentt 
Customer 
Services

P
age 99



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 14

Assualts on staff/customers due to the open 
nature of the Civic Centre Foyer

Possible extensive injury to staff 
or customers. Reputational risk of 
Civic Centre being seen as an 
unsafe place to visit. Financial 
impact on ability to hire out event 
spaces. 5 3 15

A - extensive security presence in public areas.                               B- 
extensive security camera surveillance of public areas.          C- Non 
confrontational/pleasant environment                                                       
D- proactive communications between service teams and security 
team about known customers who may present a risk when visiting 
the civic centre

Continual monitoring 
by FM Team and 
security sub group of 
the cc Stakeholder 
Group 5 3 15

A- Periodic review of communications 
between service teams and security                           
B- Change surveillance camera position in 
service corridor under grand staircase                             
C- review door locking arrangements for 
rooms off service corridor. On going

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 19

Homelessness demand led pressures will 
adversely impact on the temporary 
accommodation budget

Increased cost will impact oin the 
abilityy of the council to balance 
its budget 4 6 24

Rigorous application of Homelessness assessment criteriaWork with 
BHP to develop lettigngs agency to access PRS accommodation Regular monitoring 3 5 15

Reduction in the use of high cost temporary 
accommodation and introduction of new more 
cost effective contracts to provide temporary 
accommodation

Head of Housing 
Needs

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 20

Infill development delayed and limited 
availability of further sites for next phase 
development identified

This will impact upon the 
numbers of families in B&B and 
Temporary accomodation qand 
the Councils ability to reduced it 
housing waiting lists 4 6 24

Effective governance and performance management arrangements in 
placeIdentification of excess sites to absorb impact of delayed 
progressionEstablish resources and expertise to support opportunity 
and site identification; business case development for relevant 
corporate sites Regular monitoring 3 5 15

Establish resources and expertise to support 
opportunity and site identification; business 
case development for relevant corporate sites

Head of Housing 
Partnerships

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 21

Reduction in number of Empty Property Grant 
properties brought into use

This will impact upon the 
numbers of families in B&B and 
Temporary accomodation and the 
Councils ability to reduced it 
housing waiting lists 5 4 20

Suite of options being developed for alternatives to traditional 
temporary accommodationProgramme focussed on smaller units Regular monitoring 3 4 12

Refocus programme on smaller units and 
examine  meeting demand for other need 
groups, Move On and ASC

Head of Private 
Sector Housing

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 22

Employment and skills merger and START 
service transformation fails to achieve 
employment and training objectives

Reduced and/or less effective 
vocational training and 
employment outcomes for Brent 
residents. SFA grant-funding for 
START service is not maintained. 3 6 18

Project plan for modernisation/transformation work-streams in place. 
Service merger proposals and programme set. Regular monitoring 3 4 12

Merger implementation plan to be 
produced.Clear Cultural Change Programme to 
be instituted

Operational 
Director 
Housing & 
Employment

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 23

Current economic situation leading to 
Increased debt arising from unpaid Invoices

This will prevent/delay Planning & 
Regeneration 's ability to become 
self financing .A greater call upon 
the Councils revenue budgets 4 4 16 Regular monitoring 4 3 12

Work closely with FSC to ensure income 
maximised. Increased monitoring within 
service. 

Head of 
Planning & Head 
of Business 
Control

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 24 Income decline due to loss of business share 

This will prevent/delay Planning & 
Regeneration 's ability to becoem 
self financing .A greater call upon 
the Councils revenue budgets 4 5 20

Significant relationship based marketing LABC partnering agreement 
in placeNew work strands introduced - e.g. party wall Regular monitoring 4 3 12

Plan to win back business, also more flexible 
recruitment allowing speedy downsizing e.g. 
use of partnering, agency staff and consultants

Head of 
Planning & Head 
of Business 
Control

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 25 Health and safety – failure of compliance.  

Risk of prosecutions and fines 
from HSERisk of serious injury to 
staff and subsequent insurance 
claims 5 4 20

Regular H&S review meetings with Property & Projects and Corporate 
H&S Board Regular monitoring 4 3 12

Processes and training in place.  Looking at 
capital projects and buildings.  Responsibility 
clearly set out.  Clearly setting out the areas of 
H&S we should be focusing on.  

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

P
age 100



Operational Risks with Net Score >=12

Service 
Area ID1 Identification Impact

R
a
w
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

R
a
w
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

R
a
w
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Existing Controls Sources of Assurance

N
e
t
 
I

m
p
a
c
t

N
e
t
 
L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

N
e
t
 
R
i
s
k
 
S
c
o
r
e Further Actions Deadline

Responsible 
Officer

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 26 Building failures – specifically the Civic Centre.

Loss of reputation due to inability 
to offer or relocate service 
deliveryrisks to most vulnurable 
residnts throgh no or poor 
servicew resposnes 3 6 18

Total FM contract in place. Major M&E covered by warranty and 
specialist maintenance contracts Regular monitoring 3 5 15

Contingency planning and engagement with IT 
and the emergency planning team to develop 
a emergency plan.  Prevention activities.  And 
back up locations.  

Operational 
Director, 
Property & 
Projects

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 28 Accelerated rollout of Universal Credit 

May cause hardship or confusion 
for customers and additional 
demand on Benefits team, 
Customer Service Centre and 
Benefits Welfare team 4 6 24

Benefits Welfare team established and has effectively dealt with 
previous welfare reforms.  Transition project planned.  Partnership 
Board and governance established with DWP.  

Regular monitoring 
and project 
management.  Extent 
of UC rollout will be 
limited in 2015 
(though capability of 
DWP to administer it 
effectively is 
questionable) 3 6 18

Operational phase of project brought forward 
following DWP announcement re. acceleration 
of rollout.  Refocusing of action plan to ensure 
operational issues and risks identified and 
mitigated On-going (timetable for UC rollout not yet available)

Head of 
Customer 
Service and 
Benefits

Regeneratio
n and 
Growth R&G 29

Council Tax and NNDR in year  collection 
reduces 

Loss of income due to fall in 
collection.  Increased arrears will 
impact on resources required to 
collect in future years 6 3 18

Monitoring of collection against profile undertaken each month.  
Recovery initiatives monitored and reviewed. 

Weekly monitoring of 
performance and   
monthly profile 
targets set to ensure 
any issues are 
identified as early as 
possible 6 2 12

Ensure all collection initiatives are maximised 
and that recovery action takes place as early as 
possible Ongoing

Head of 
Customer 
Service and 
Revenues

P
age 101



P
age 102

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Audit Committee 
24 March 2015 

Report from the Chief 
Finance Officer  

For Information  
 

  
Wards Affected: 

ALL 

  

Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 

 

1. Summary 
 

1.1. This report sets out the Draft Internal Audit Plan (“the Plan) for 2015/16 and the 

basis on which the plan has been formulated. 

1.2. All Local Authorities are required to make proper provision for Internal Audit in line 

with the 1972 Local Government Act and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2003 (as amended). The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2013) require, 

“4chief audit executive to establish risk based plans to determine the priorities of 

the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals”. 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1. The Audit Committee note the approach taken to formulate the draft plan for the 

2015/16 financial year and approve the content of the plan. This is in line with the 

Committee’s role, as defined in the Constitution: “To consider the strategic and 

annual audit plans, and consider the level of assurance these can give over the 

Council’s corporate governance and risk management arrangements.” 

Agenda Item 9

Page 103



 
 

3. Detail 

3.1. The Internal Audit Service is delivered through a partnership between the 

Council’s in-house Audit & Investigations Team (‘the in-house team’) and Mazars 

Public Sector Internal Audit Limited (previously Deloitte & Touche Public Sector 

Internal Audit Limited). The plan or 2015/16 is to deliver 996 operational audit 

days (i.e. those which generate specific reports) of which 590 are allocated to 

Mazars and  406 to the in-house team. 

3.2. This is a reduction of some 11% on the previous years’ coverage. The reduction 

follows budget reductions in A&I of £100,000, as agreed by full council on 3rd 

March 2015. This will be achieved by reducing the contract with Mazars by some 

300 days (a 25% cut). The reduction in bought in days is being partially offset by 

the use of a trainee within A&I and by reducing the non-chargeable days delivered 

by the contractor. A planning assumption has been made that the team will have a 

trainee for the full year. 

3.3. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require a risk based plan to take into 

account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion and requires 

the plan to indicate the link to the organisational objectives and priorities.  

3.4. The Plan has been formulated on the basis of the following: 

• The council’s strategic and operational risks set out in the risk register 
• Audit knowledge of the Council’s operations and awareness and experience of 

risks being faced within other Local Authorities, as well as across the wider 
public sector; 

• Internal Audit knowledge and understanding of key developments taking place 
across the Council; and 

• Discussions with Strategic Directors across the Council to inform the plan. 
• Historic audit coverage 
• Areas which have been the subject of fraud/irregularities 

 
3.5. Internal Audit has liaised with the Council’s external auditors (KPMG) in 

developing the plan. They have no requirements with regard to the plan other than 
it taking a risk based approach. The plan is set out in the tables below: 

Page 104



 
 

 

Department 
2015/16 
Plan Days 2014/15 Change 

Adult Social Care 87 102 -15 
Children and Young People 140 90 50 
Regeneration and Growth 150 150 0 
Schools 120 139 -19 
BHP 150 150 0 
Chief Operating Officer 269 0 269 
Legal and Procurement 

 
55 -55 

IT 
 

107 -107 
Finance 

 
75 -75 

HR 
 

35 -35 
ACE 

 
48 -48 

Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 

114 -114 
General Contingency 40 10 25 
Follow Up 40 45 -5 

    Total 996 1120* -124 

Table 1 – 2015/16 Audit Plan summary table and comparison with previous 
year (*excludes 80 days for audit planning, reporting and other non-

chargeable time) 

3.6. Table 1 sets out the planned days by department. Whilst the number of days 

within the Chief Operating Officer’s department appears high, it is broadly 

comparable with the number of days in the constituent departments in 14/15. The 

BHP Audit Committee has already confirmed that it requires the same level of 

audit coverage as the previous year.  

3.7. In relation to scheduling, it is anticipated that April 2015 will primarily be used to 

finalise 2014/15 audits, hence fewer days will be available in Q1. The remaining 

days will be scheduled evenly across quarters 2 to 4 although there will need to be 

flexibility within the plan across all quarters. The timetable shown is, therefore, 

indicative. 

Page 105



 
 

Adult Social Care – Total Days = 87 
 

 Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
87 days  

Schedule 

Quality Assurance Meeting (QAM) 

The focus of the audit will on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
procedures for approving care packages once eligibility has been 
assessed 

Limited 
2011/12 15 Q1 

Adult Social Care Home Care Contracts Limited 
2009/10 12 Q1 

Hospital Discharge and Delayed Discharge Processes 

The focus of the audit will be on the processes in place for dealing  
with notifications when service users are to be discharged from 
hospital 

Not 
previously 
audited 

15 Q2 

Financial Assessments and Charging 

Review of in place around the management and administration of 
financial assessments and the charging of service users. 

Limited  
2011/12 15 Q3 

Safeguarding Adults Board 

Review of Governance Arrangements of the Safeguarding Adults 
Board and safeguarding processes. Partially covered in safeguarding 
audit in 2014/15 (Substantial) but will focus on the role of the board. 
Will include meeting with independent chair. 

No 
specific 
audit (now 
on a 
statutory 
footing) 

10 Q4 

Care Act 

Contingency for implementation of care act.  
 20 Q4 

 
Children and Young People – Total Days = 135 
 

 Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
140 
days  

Schedule 

Residential placements 

Procurement and payment process. Audit of placements as a whole 
undertaken in 2013/14. This will concentrate on residential clients. 

Limited  
2013/14 

10 Q3 

Safeguarding 

High Risk 

Prior to 
2008 

15 Q2 

Special Educational Needs Disabilities 

Examined use in children’s centres only in 2010/11 

Prior to 
2008 

15 Q2 

S17 Payments 

No recent audit. Focus on assessment, authorisation and payment of 
S.17 funds or prepaid cards 

Prior to 
2008 

15 Q2 

Payments to Foster Carers 

No recent audit and change in system. Focus on payment system 
Limited  
2008/09 

15 Q4 

Adoption allowance and special guardianship orders and payments 

No recent audit. Focus on assessments and payments 

Not 
previously 
audited 

15 Q4 

Home to School Transport Limited  10 Q1 

Page 106



 
 

No recent audit. To complement review of Transport services. Focus 
on assessment of need, budget monitoring, safeguarding  

2008/09 

Troubled Families/ Working with Families 

Grant requirement. Focus on sample verification of claims 

2014/15 

Non 
Assuranc
e 

20 Q1 – Q4 

Safeguarding Multi agency data exchange 

Focus on data security 

Not 
previously 
audited 

10 Q2 

Direct Payments / Short Breaks  

Focus on assessments, monitoring and payment process 

Substanti
al 

2010/11 

15 Q3 

 
Regeneration and Growth – Total Days = 150 
 

 Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
150 days  

Schedule 

Willesden Green Cultural Centre  

Contract audit review of payments, variations 

Not 
previously 
audited 

15 Q3 

Development Control/ Planning Applications & Enforcement 

No recent audit. High corruption risk. Review of the 
effectiveness of controls and processes over the administration 
of planning applications including decisions and enforcement.  

Substantial 
2007/08 15 Q2 

HMO and other private sector licencing 

No recent audit. Review licensing process to ensure 
consistency, compliance with statute, income and enforcement 

HMO 
2009/10 
(Substantial
) 
Private 
Sector 
Licensing 
(not 
previously 
audited) 

15 Q1 

Private Sector Procurement 

High risk area. Focus on procurement of B&B and Temporary 
Accommodation property 

Limited  
2009/10 15 Q3 

Building Control  Substantial 
2012/13 15 Q2 

Brent Adult Community Education Service 

No recent audit 
Substantial
2007/08 15 Q1 

Private Sector Renewal and Disabled Facilities Grants 

Focus on assessment and payments  

DFG 
(2008/09) 
Substantial 
PSR (not 
previously 
audited) 

15 Q2 

Capital Programme 

Focus on current contract audit of two major capital projects 

2014/15 
(Full and 
Substantial  

30 Q3 

Regulatory Services 

Recent audit on licencing only, other services not audited in 

Limited 
2014/15 15 Q4 

Page 107



 
 

recent years 

 
Chief Operating Officer – Total Days = 269 
 
Corporate and Business Support  - Plan Days 85 
 

Finance Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
40 days  

Schedule 

Payables/Receivable/Ledger/Bank 
Key financial systems which generally have received 
substantial assurance rating. Focus will be on ensuring 
payments are valid and correctly coded, whether there is 
scope for procurement savings by identifying payments to the 
same creditor from multiple service areas. In relation to 
receivables testing will include an assessment of the adequacy 
of debt recovery. Computer assisted audit techniques will be 
utilised. System resilience, data security and access controls 
will not be covered in this audit. 

Substantial 
2014/15 20 Q3 

Government Procurement Cards 

No previous system audit although a proactive anti-fraud 
review was conducted in 2013 to ensure payments were valid. 
Audit will focus on the system controls over the issue of cards 
and their use and will test a number of transactions. 

2009/10 
Non 
Assurance  

10 Q1 

Budget Monitoring 

No recent audit. Focus on high risk demand led budgets. 
Testing robustness of forecasting, allocation of responsibility, 
authorisation of virements, accuracy of reporting to CMT, 
members. Risk increasing with fewer finance staff to support 
service areas and self service elements on Oracle. 

 

Substantial 
2007/08 10 Q2 

HR Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
45 days  

Schedule 

Payroll 
Key financial system generally receives substantial assurance. 
Focus will be on additions to pay and variations, 
authorisations, correct spine point (checking pre and post R12) 

Substantial 
2014/15 10 Q3 

Gifts and Hospitality (Officers) 
No recent audit. New electronic system in place. Focus will be 
on compliance with procedure 

Limited  
2011/12 10 Q1 

Conflict of interest 
No recent audit. Focus on system controls for declaring 
interests, evidence of review by managers, sample check 
compliance against open source records (i.e. companies 
house etc).  

Limited 
2011/12 10 Q1 

Recruitment 
No recent audit. Focus on compliance with policy; controls 
over recruitment justification; compliance with job evaluation; 
advertising of vacancies; shortlisting; assessment and 
selection interviews; employment checks; and induction. 

Limited  
2009/10 15 Q3 

Strategic Commissioning - Plan Days 111 

Digital Services Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
76 days  

Schedule 

Tribal Application (Pupil Management) 
Although substantial assurance, sensitive child data. Focus on 

Substantial 
2011/12 10 Q1 

Page 108



 
 

application controls and authorisation for access 

Perception or Axis Application 2009/10 
Limited 12 Q1 

Community Access Portal (New) Not 
previously 
audited 

12 Q3 

Frameworki (Mosaic) Application 
Finance module limited assurance report 2010/11. No recent 
audit on main application. Key system. Sensitive client data 

Limited 
2010/11 12 Q4 

Contingency 
  30 Q4 

Partnerships and Transformation Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
15 days  

Schedule 

Voluntary Sector Grants / Commissioning 
Although substantial assurance in 2013/14 risks profile 
increases with reliance on third sector for delivery of services. 
Focus will be on performance monitoring and funding 
utilisation 

Substantial 
2013/14 15 Q4 

Public Health Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
20 days  

Schedule 

Provider Contracts/Payments 
Focus on data quality, monitoring and payments 
Previous audit relates to smoking cessation only. 

Substantial 
2013/14 20 Q4 

Community Services - Plan Days 73 

Community Safety Public Protection Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
10 days  

Schedule 

Community Safety Strategy 
No recent audit. Safeguarding is a high risk. Focus on process 
and procedure across council and partners to ensure 
appropriate information sharing regarding vulnerable children. 

No 
previous 
audit 

10 Q2 

Public Realm Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
10 days  

Schedule 

Public Realm Contract Management and Payments. 
Substantial audit in 2014/15 only relates to part of the contract. 

Substantial 
2014/15 10 Q2 

Customer Services Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
15 days  

Schedule 

Housing Benefits 
Although substantial assurance, external audit and IA have 
identified weaknesses in claim data entry. Focus on verifying 
sample of individual claims and accuracy of assessments. 

Substantial 
2013/14 15 Q3 

Transportation Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
25 days  

Schedule 

Pot Holes Grant Certification 
No 
previous 
audit 

10 Q1 

Transport Services 
Limited assurance report. Focus on fleet management, 
procurement and maintenance 

Limited 
2011/12 15 Q1 

Culture Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
3 days  
 

Schedule 

Barham Park Accounts Certification Unqualified 
2014/15 3 Q2 

Registrars Previous 
Audit 

2015/16 
10 days  

Schedule 

Page 109



 
 

Registrars 
No recent audit. Focus on controls over income, security of 
documents, compliance with statutory requirements, data 
accuracy and security 

Limited  
2009/10 10 Q1 

 
BHP – Total Days = 150 
 
 Previous 

Audit 
2015/16 
150 days  

Schedule 

Housing Repairs & Maintenance Limited 
2013/14 

15 Q3 

Major Contracts 1  Limited 
2013/14 

10 Q3 

Major Contract 2 Substantial 
2013/14 

10 Q3 

Community Grant Fund Not 
applicable 

12 Q1 

Recruitment & Retention Limited 
2010/11 

12 Q1 

Safeguarding Not 
applicable 

10 Q2 

Data Quality  Not 
applicable 

12 Q1 

Budget Management Substantial 
2013/14 

12 Q3 

Key Financials Systems(AP;AR;GL) Substantial 
2013/14 

20 Q3 

V5 System Limited 
2012/13 

10 Q2 

Follow Up Audits  10  

Consultation, Communication, Reporting   17  

TOTAL  150 

 

 

 

Page 110



 
 

4. Financial Implications 

4.1. The total value of the contract is likely to be £201,000 in 2015/16 and is funded 

within the Audit and Investigations base budget. If the total number of audit days 

attributable to Mazars is less than the 600 days allocated, then the total amount 

paid will reduce accordingly. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1. None 

6. Diversity Implications 

6.1. None 

7. Background Papers 

7.1. None 

8. Contact Officer Details 
Simon Lane, Head of Audit & Investigations, 1st Floor Civic Centre 
Telephone – 020 8937 1260 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Conrad Hall  
Chief Finance Officer 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Committee 
24 March 2015 

Report from the Chief Finance 
Officer  

For Information 
Wards  affected: All 

Appointment of Independent Chair 

 

1 Summary 

1.1 This report sets out the arrangements for the appointment of the independent chair of 

the audit committee.  

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Audit Committee note the arrangements as set out within the report and approve the 

person specification as attached at appendix 1. 

3 Detail 

3.1 The term of office for the current independent chair of the audit committee comes to 

an end on 24th June 2015. In accordance with the council’s constitution the 

appointment is made by the Full Council. The allowance is set at £419 per annum. 

3.2 The fixed term nature of the contract requires the council to advertise the post. The 

current chair is able to re-apply along with any other candidate.  

3.3 In order to ensure some continuity, officers intend to request that the date of the June 

audit committee is set no later than 24th June 2015 with the expectation that the 

current chair is able to attend the committee with the potential to hand over to a new 

chair on the day.  

3.4 Previous appointments to the post have been made by a panel of three officers (Chief 

Finance Officer, Head of Audit and Investigation and Monitoring Officer) with the 

Agenda Item 10

Page 113



 

appointment being approved by Full Council at the May meeting preceding the first 

meeting of the committee.  

3.5 The last time the post was advertised there were two applicants, both of whom were 

shortlisted and interviewed. The previous recruitment exercise in March 2011 

attracted 7 candidates, three of whom were shortlisted. Officers intend to advertise for 

the post in conjunction with the position of Chair of the Pensions Board. Candidates 

will be able to apply for one or both positions. The current person specification is 

attached at appendix 1. 

3.6 The recruitment process is managed through Human Resources and the normal 

council recruitment procedures apply. 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The Constitution provides at Standing Order 54 that the Council is responsible for 

appointing one co-opted non voting member for the Audit Committee. 

4.2 The Constitution provides at Standing Order 54 that the co opted Member shall hold 

office for up to two years or until the date of the Annual Meeting nearest to the expiry 

of that two year period (or until the date of the meeting of Full Council that takes place 

after that Annual meeting to agree appointments to committees). Such appointments 

shall be subject to confirmation by Full Council at each Annual Meeting that follows 

the appointment (or at the meeting of Full Council that takes place after the Annual 

Meeting to agree appointments to committees as the case may be.) 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 None 

6 Diversity Implications 

6.1 None 

7 Contact Officer Details 

 
Simon Lane, Head of Audit & Investigations, 1st floor, Brent Civic Centre 

Telephone – 020 8937  
 
Conrad Hall 

 Chief Finance Officer 

Page 114



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 
 

Audit Committee 
 

Independent Member 
 

Position description 
 
1. To assist and advise members on matters being considered by the 

committee, including audit, risk management and governance. 
 
2. To contribute to the future development of the Audit Committee. 
 
3. To contribute to or develop training for members of the Audit Committee. 

 
4. To deal with other matters for which the Committee is responsible for as 

indicated in its terms of reference. 
 
5. To carry out the duties of the position at all times with regard to the Council’s 

Equal Opportunities and Customer Care policies and to observe 
confidentiality at all times. 

 
Person specification 
 
To be appointed a person must: 
 
1. Be able to devote sufficient time to the role throughout the committee cycle, 

including attending meetings out of office hours. 
 
2. Possess tact and good interpersonal skills. 

 
3. Be familiar with the council’s equal opportunities policy and have a 

commitment to the objectives of that policy, including a commitment to treat 
people equally. 

 
4. Be able to evaluate reports concerning the council’s internal control, risk 

management and governance arrangements with analytical skill so as to be 
able to advise other members of the committee and question council officers 
appropriately.  

 
5. Have knowledge of local government and an understanding of the role of 

internal and external audit. 
 
6. Maintain confidentiality when required to do so. 

 
7. Have no previous contact with the authority or its members or officers that 

could be seen to prejudice their independence.  
 

Page 115



8. Not be or have been a member or officer of this authority for at least 5 years. 
Nor be a relative or close friend of a member or officer of the authority.  Nor 
must you be a member or employee of any other “relevant authority” (defined 
as a local authority and some other agencies eg. London Fire and Emergency 
Planning Authority (see attached list as Appendix A))  
 

9. Not hold nor be pursuing any current political office and be seen as being 
impartial 
 

10. Not have a criminal record. 
 
It would be desirable for the appointed person to have: 
 
11. Experience of dealing with local authorities or a similar public sector or   

voluntary organisation; 
 
12. Experience of considering and evaluating information or evidence; 
 
13. Experience of chairing meetings; 
 
14. An understanding and interest in governance, audit or risk issues; 
 
15. A knowledge of the borough of Brent. 
 

Page 116


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 KPMG External Audit Plan
	6 KPMG Terms of reference for audit committee training
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Internal Audit Progress Report appendix 1 - March 2015 docx v2

	8 Risk Register
	Corporate Risk Feb 2015
	OPerational Risks Feb 2015

	9 Internal Audit Plan 2015/16
	10 Recruitment of Independent Chair of the Audit Committee
	Appendix Person Specification AC chair


